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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF JUDICATURL OF JAMAICA
IN COMMON LAW

3UIT NO., C, L, 217 of 1971

BITEEN ROBINSON & COMPANY LIMITH PLAINTIFF
AND CHRYSLER (U, K,) LIMITED DEFTMDANT

R. N. A, Henriques, QeCe and J, 4, Leo-Rhynie, NeCe, for plaintifif.

D. M, Muirhead, Q.C. and Mrs. Angella Hudson-Phillips for defendant.

6th, 7th, 9th, 10th, 13th, 17th November, 1970;
7th, 8th March, 1979; 1llth, 13th June, 1979;
16th May, 1980; 30th March, 1981
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. THITE, J.:

On the 16th May, 1980, I delivered oral judgment in this
case, and I promised to give my ressons in writing at a later date.
This I now do, conscious of the fact that much time has passed,
Nevertheless, bccause of a desire to deal with all the issues as
they presented to me, I would ask that the delay be not treated as
merely dilatory,.

The plaintiff, Robinson and Company Limited, was, up to
<;=\ the 25th day of October, 1969, the holder of an exclusive franchise

/ for the distribution in Jamaica of certain makes of motor vehicles,
manufactured by the defendant, Chrysler (U.X,) Limited, The
defendant itself was successor to the rights and liabilities under

a contract in writins dated the 1lst day of August, 1966 (The August

Apreement), made betwecn the plaintiff and Rootes Motors Overscas

Limited which was a wholly owned subsidiary of Rootes Motors

Limited.'
<;j‘ By letter dated the 27th December, 1967, Rootes Motors

Limited informed the plaintiff that Rootes Motors Limited had

acquired the business and assects of Rootes Motors Overseas Limited;

and "has assumed full responsibilities for all debts, liabilities

and contracts of Rootes Motors Overseas Limitede” So that as from
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the lst January, 1968, all the Distributor Agrecements of Rootes
Motors Overseas Limiﬁed were transferred to Rootes Motors Linited,
is from the 1lst July, 1968, a new organisational concept
was circulariscd to Rootes dealers, This indicated that Rootes
was now in the Chrysler Group, and with particular reference to the
status of the plaintiff as a distributor of Rootes automotive
products, it was pointed out that the new organisstional concept
%11l not involve any chanpe in our contractual arrangements for
the time being." The foregoing information was conveyed in a
circular dated 22nd July, 1963, on the letter-head of Rootes Motors
Limited, and revealed that Chrysler International would, after the
1zt July, 196G, "act on our behalf znd assume complete
regponsibility for the Groupt's commercisl policy dealings with
your conmpany, and for the¢ c¢o-ordination and supervision of our
sales to yous" By letter dated July 31, 1968, all Rootes! Dealers
received a letter over the signature of M, D, Imus, Assictant Group
Ixecutive, Latin American Operations, confirming that thce assumption
of marketing responsibility by Chrysler International %Y“is part of
our plan to further increase our sales of Chrysler products through-
out the world =~ and -~ to improve communications hetween you, our
dealers, and our company.'" The letter added: "In the very near
future you will receive detailed information from Mr. D. . Schroeder,
Director of Sales, as to the new organisational structure and
operating proceduresg,

Mre Schroeder himself urote to Mr., Re E. Clarke of
Stephenson's Motors Limited, London Road, Tunbridge VWells, Kent,
the following letter bearing date October 8, 1968:

1 It has been brought to our attention

that your negotiations with Messrs., Robinson
and Company Limited, Kingston, Jamaica, are
now at an advanced stage, and that you will
be providing management support in effecting
a reorganization as well as nominating three
members of the Board.

Whilst we appreciate that such changes

will undoubtedly lcad to a stronger organization,
we do feel that you shouvld know that we have yet



" to complete our market survey proﬁfam in Jemaica,
and cannot at this stage rive any guarantee as to
how any franchise realignments might affect
Robinson and Companye. e would however be most
interested to hear of your plans, as such
informsation will obviously be of assistance in
formulating our own plans for this market. "
This letter was copied to Mre G. Clarke, of Robinson and Company,
Jamaicae
4t thie stage, I should identify more fully who
Mre. Re e Clarke is. He gave cevidence that he had been associated
with the automotive industry from 1931, &t the time of giving his
evidence, he was chairmesn of several companies including Puttocks!?
Holdings and the plaintiff, He assumed the latter position within
the last 12 months previous to giving his evidence on the
13th November, 1978, Hec first became aware of Robinson and Company
in 1968, when a Mr. Duggan of i/ilkinson and Gaviller, the sole
confirming house for Robinson and Company, suggested that the
plaintiff required help in its management problems. After
discussions with the dircctors of the plaintiff, Mr. Clarke provided
the reguisite management services through Puttocks' Holdings. In
pursuance of this, Mre. Desmond ILdgar Arthur came to Jamaica to carry
out a feasibility study during Scptember, October and November, 1968,
Mr, Arthur, who had been involved in the automotive industry for
37 years, said that during those months he was engaged in an advisory
capacity to Robinson's and as a consultant. At the time he was
employed by Puttocks' Holdings of which Mr. Re BE. Clarke was Chairman
and Managing Directors They had been associated for about thirty
years in business, Indeed, at the time of his giving evidence,
Mre Arthur was a Director of Stephenson's, Ladymead, Guildford,
Surrey England. He was also Managing Director of Export Parts
Express which handles the export of motor vehicle spare parts to
Jamaica, among other countries.,
Both Mr, Clarke and Mr. Arthur had seen the letters to which

I have referred, They had been in constant and continuous

communication after Mre. Arthur came to Jamaica. As a matter of fact,

M
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the lett2r from Mr. Schoeder impressed on Mr. Clarke ! the tenous n&turp
of the Agency Agreemont,” which he said he sow for the Tirst time

after roceivins Mr. Schoederts lettor. He was alerted teo enquire how much

notice the plaintiff would be given in the cvent that Roctes made any

change in its franchisce arrangements; he discovered thnt the veriod of notice

was 60 days compared with the notice period of 12 months nllowed by th:

other distributorship arronpements with which he was Trmilior.

§ /
Concerned about this shorter veriod of notigé, Mr. Clarke having
im mind that the plaintiff had more than A0 days' supply of parts wrote
to Mr. Scheeder on Octoher 12, 1868, cnguiring whether the letter of
October 8, 1968 was ‘suzgesting that fer the time being Robinsont's wonld

.

be well-2dvised to run-down the stock of Rocotes pnrts until they are carry-

ing no more than 60 days supnly? Mr. Clarke explained in evidence that
"1 posed that question because it seemed to me to be commonsense that 1f
apency might be terminiated in such a short time, the franchise holder should
not be expected to keen stociks in ¢xcess of that veriod.n He exprossed
himself 28 worricd over the likely situation, "because if T did not get some
kind of specilal arrangement with Rootes it seemed to me that Bobinson's
should reduce their stocks to be more commensurate with the notice period.”
Qutstandingly, both Mr. Clarke and Mr. Arthur were faced with the
possibility of the termination of the franchisec contained in the Aupgust
Agreement, and it is not illerical +to describe their resultant mood as one
to prevent its termination considering that "the franchise was the lifeblood

of Robinson's.”

The question of the termination of the francise was heightened

by the intelligence thnt consideration was being given to combining the

distributorship of Rootes and Chrysler Products im Jamaica. In January, 1969

the plaintiff was distributing the Rootes products, snd Motor Rsles and

Service was distributing
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the Chrysler products. I was told by Mr, Arthur that on the
28th of that month, a tesn from Chrysler came to Jamalca to assess
the relative arraugements by each of these distributors so that a
decision regarding the combhined franchise could be made. The
necessary tour of inspection of the premises of the plaintiff was
made, followed by a discussion of the future nrospects in so far
as Robinson and Company were concerned. It should be noted that the
Chrysler team was headed by Mr. Imus, and he was accompanied by
Mr. Schroeder and Mr. Hughes. Nr. Imus described himself as being,
at that time, Vice-President, Chryvsler International Latin American
Operations. In that pcsition, he had responsibility for dealers
in Tatin America, a region which includes the Caribbean, Puerto
Rico, and Argentine and other Latin American countries.
Mr. Schroeder was Director of ZSales. It 1s clear that the inspec-
tion and subsequent discussious werc the result of a dealer in
representation study which had been rrepared by Chrysler's Regional
Office in late 1967. Thc study recomnended only one Chrysler product
francise distributor in Hingston, Jamaica. But there developed a
divergence of views betwcen .the Marketing Staff and the staff of the
Dircctor of Sales as to wihich of the vregsent distributors should be
recommemded for the combined franchise.

This aspect of the matter was discussed by the Chrysler
team with Mr. Arthur and Mr. Hirst, representing the plaintiff.
Mr. Arthur had, by then, been acpolnted Managing Director of the
piaintiff. At this meeting, the discusgsions conveyed the thinking
of each side to the other. DNDeccause of the outstanding importance of

this meeting, I vpropose to set out in detail as composite a picture

as it is’ possible to develop from the evidence of Mr. Arthur and

Mr., Imus, the pnly participant who gave evidence before me. T

accept that néturally, the team from Robinsont's did project their

interest in becoming the selected didtributor under the combined
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franchise. T accept that Mr. Imus vointed out that the existing facilities
provided by Robinson's wore inadequate; to which Mr. Arthur replied that

the wlaintiff was already at that time neprotiating for alternate
accommodation. It is clear that this factor of inadequscv of facilitices

was .commonly and jointly vocognised as vital to the resolution of the

grant of a2 combined franchise for distributorship.

According to Mr. Arthur, Mr. Imus promised to give decision
thereon within 28 days. Br. Iswus told me th»t his timing was projected
to "as soon as vpossihle;" a phrasze which in my view, in its elasticity
could be confined to two woeks or even oxtended to six months or longer, but
Mr.Imus st=ted that under the circumstances it wonld not be earlier than 28
days. The decision which was solely Mr. Imus' to make, would need time to

get zgreement to the final decision between his sales, marketing, and legal

staffs. #We did not necd to rof the matter to the Head Office - a factor
which is important in detcermining what took place at the meeting of the

28th January, 1969,

Mr. Imus gave evidence that at the meeting, Mr. Arthur was con-~
cerned that if he ordered varts and vehicles and the decigsion on the combined
franchise was adverse to Nobinson's, the plaintiff would be stuck with them
Accordingly, Mr. Arthur ssid that this was a major consideration which he
expressed in the following terms: 1In view of the answers by Mr. Imus on the
matter of the combined franchise, he considered that Robinson's should curtail
further orders for parts and those in the vipeline should be halted.

pAccording. to Mr. Arthur:-

iMr. Tmus replied and said there would be

no question of Robinson's being left with
the parts, and requested that I continue in
normal fashion placing orders for parts and
not stopping those already in the wnipeline.
I le the woint at that time that in view
of his assurance T would continue in the
normal fashion and allow the continauance of
supplics.t

A0
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Mre .irthur gave evidence that he asked Mr. Imus about
curtailing supplies because at the time of the meeting on
28th January, 1963, his company was carrying at least seven months!
stock of Rootes parts. If this was the case, it would certainly be
(\ ) unwise and not in the interest of the plaintiff and its share-
holders, that it should invest any moncy in Rootes parts. Further-
more, the time lag between ordering and supply or delivery would
have to be taken into account, This was approximately six weeks, so
that any new orders being placed at the time would arrive in Jamaica
after the possible termination of the franchise, bearing in mind
that the defendant need give only 60 days' notice of termination.
The account of Mr. Imus on this aspect is as follows: To
(;;7 his recollection, it was towards the end of the discussion which T
accept lasted for two and one-half of three hours (per Mr. Arthur) -
that Mre Arthur expressed concern that Robinsont's could be stuck with
new vehicleg and parts in the event of termination; Said Mre. Imus:
" I assured Mr, frthur that in the event of the
terminzstion, Chrysler would purchase under the
term of the qugus£7 Agrcement all new vehicles
and current parts and that he should have no

occasion to worry about that aspect of the
nmatter., "

<;°; To the best of his knowledge, Mr. Imus said that it was not
_ a part of the conversation or discussion that Robinson's would suffer
"no loss in the event of termination.' This denial is counter to the
following evidence given by Mre Arthur under cross-examination:

" The discussion with Mr. Imus on 28th January, 1969,
was re vehicles and parts with emphasis on parts.
Not so that Imus in answer to my concern said, 'You
need not be worried about that aspect of the matter,!
that in the event of a termination Chrysler would
repurchase under the terms of the contract all parts,.
He made no mention of contract at ally there was no
= discussion of the contract. I attended that meeting
( J knowing the layman's apprcciliation of the meaning of
- term ‘contract', and as I was being asked to continue
ordering parts, I sought the Imus assurance that it
would take all the partss. The Imus assurance was not
in relation to current parts, assurance was re all the
parts and that we would suffer no loss, My
recollection is that the word tcurrent' was not mentioned.
It was all the parts, Imus to my knowledge, did not
mention 60 days although it was certainly at the back
of my mind,

3
)
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T was concerned as to what would happen if

Chrysler terminated franchise under the contract.
T knew that Chrysler had the right not to
purchase anything at all. And to protect my
cowpany, I wanted Ghrysler to tell me then that
they would repurchase parts and units, and not
leave me high and dry with them. Iwmus gave nme
the assurance that on termination they would
repurchasce parts and units.”

Although Mr. Arthur gave his acceptation of the wor’'s "suffer ao
loss", he did not sa& in evidencé whether he enquired from Mr. Imus what
he had in mind. However, it has to be considered by me whether, if those
words were in fact used, Mr. Arthur's understanding was correct. That is
to say:

M,oee in @ situstion when I was being asked to
continue the order of varts and parts still
continuing to arrive; and thers is ovviously &
considerable cost in bringing goods inte 2
company, documenting them in stock records,
clearing notes against orders. This is quite
often complicated if the manufacturer suryplies
vart only of the order. One should expect to
take into account any over-hcad cost: storage,
etc. NQuite a considerable cost in that
connection. I understand loss to refer teo all
these things."

It is note worthy that Mr. Imus, speaking from 41 years!'
experience in the motor vehicle industry, said that he did not disbelieve
Mr. Arthur's expresscd concern abcut being stuck with parts. And it
would be a matter of comumercial concern to him, placed similarly to
Mr. Arthur. He expressed the frank appreciation of Mr. Arthurt's position
that on termination of the franchise, Robinson's would sustain a loss.

He conceded that before he gave his assurance, Mr. Arthur indicated the
likelihood of him not ordering any ncw vehicles and parts. Although he
said that his assurance was given to encourape Mr. Arthur to continue

ordering new vehicles and parts, Mr. Imus adsmantly refuted the sugges-

tion that the assurance was given to protect Robinson's against any loss

in continuing to order vehicles and parts in the event of the agency
being terminated., What is significant is that at the same meeting,
Mr. Scheceder, as I accept, reiterated and endorsed Mr. Imus' assurance
in no uncertain terms when he ordered Robinson's to "Keep the parts

rolling. Don't werry about parts.®

257
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Considering that the relutionshiy between the plaintif?f
and the defendant was governed entirely by the jpugust Agreement,
Mre Arthur said he was endecavouring to secure and ensure for
Robinson's that Chrysler repurchase cars and parts within the terms
(”:\ of the August Agreement, This declaration by Mr. Arthur adverts me
) to the August Agreement whereunder the defendant was not bound to
repurchase the parts whic¢h were unsold and were still in stock at
the termination of the franchisc agreement. The guestion is:
On the cvidence, did the plaintiff get something more from the
Assurance, bearing in mind that Mr, Imus sald, "I gave an assurance
that I expected them to act upon as businessmen. I did feel that
my company was bound by the assurance I had given"? Was the Imus
(;13 Assurance dependent upon, or connecied with, or governed by, the
August Agreement?
The provisions of the August Agreement, so far as
relevant to the issues which I have to decide, are as follows:

" clause 26: Service Parts:

The DISTRIBUTOR =znd the COMPANY shall agree
upon a minimum amount of Service Parts to be taken
by the DISTRIBUTOR with its first order for Vehicles
for stocks Subsequently, the DISTRIBUTORS' stock of
Service Parts shall be increased to enable it to
give proper and cfficient scervice in The Territory
and it 1s a condition of this fgrecment that the
DISTRIBUTOR shall at all times carry stocks of
Service Parts adequate in the opinion of the COMPANY
for the efficient servicing of Vehicles in the
Territorye, Furthermore, the DISTRIBUTOR shall arrange
for all Dealers to hold similarly stocks of replace-
ment parts proportionatc to their respective areas.

~

The DISTRIBUTOR shall annually or at such time
as the COMPANY may require provide the COMPANY with a
complete inventory in duplicate of its stock of
Service Parts for the Vehicles showing the gnality
part number and name, "

" Clause 32 (C): Procedure on Termination -

( The COMPANY may within 14 days after termination
of this Agrecment scerve a notice on the DISTRIBUTOR
of its clection to purchase any or all Vehicles and
Service Parts unsold at the date of receipt of the
notice at the nett landcd cost to the DISTRIBUTOR
and the DISTRIBUTOR shall make available such Vehicles
and Service Parts to the COMP/NY upon tender of payment
therefor provided such payment is made within 30 days
of the date of termination of this igreement, "
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The plcadings ive 2 sh2rp focus to the questions which

I have carlier raiscd. Dy the Amended Stotement of Claim, the

plaintiff avers:

Not

itM19, Turther, by an oral agreement made on the
27th or 28th January, 1969 between Messrs.

M, D, Iwmus, D.F. Schoeder and %, Hughes

acting on behalf of the Defendant, and Messrs. D.
Art and Sydncy Hirst acting on bshalf of the
Plaintiff, the Defendant ageeed that in

order spare varts from the Defendant rending a
decision by the Defendant as to whether the
Plaintifft's Agency was to be centinued or not, the
Refendant would if they decided to discontinue tho
agency purchase from the Plaintiff its stock of
currcnt pnrts and vehicles if a decision was cvon-
tually made to terminate the agency.

This oral agreement was confirmed in
writing by the said M, . Imus by letter dated
8th May, 1969 to Rodney Clerke Fsq. who was
acting on behalf of the Plaintiff,

It was an implied term of the said
agrecment that a f=ir price should be paid for
the soid spare parts and vehicles.

20, The Plaintiff has perfopmed its obligation
uncer the soid agreement.

27, The Defendant did in fact take a decigion
to terminate the Plaintiff'd agency as herein-before
allegod.

22, The Plaintiff has disposed of all the said

vehicles in the normal course of trade but still
has a large stock of current spare parts and the
Defendant in breach of the said agreement referr: d
to in pavagraph mineteen hereef has refused to
purchase the said spare parts despite repeated
requests from the Plaintiff so to do.”

should be taken of the frct that in the paragraphs

preceding these heads of claim in the Statement of Claim, the plaintiff

had contended that the defendant has wrongTully terminated the

(vx” August Agreement.

Court of Appeal, which hoeld that failure to record the Power of Attorney

This contention was eventually rejected by the

under which termination was e¢ffected did not invalidate the notice of

termination.

The c

oursc ol wleading should also be gatalogued. The

Statement of Claim wag filed in 1977, An anpearance wag entored on

9th, 1971, and def

e ey o
CTe Wl

ered on the 27th doy
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of October, 1971, The Stotenent of Clalm was amended pursusnt to aa
order of Rowan Casunbell J. (Ap.), on bth fupust, 1573. TFurther and
Better Particulars of the Statcuent of Clnim were sup-lied on the

21st day of July, 1978,

Subsequently, an amended defence was filed gnd delivered on the
kth day of Aupust, 1278, This was upon leave granted by the Honourablo
chief Justice on the 11th day of July, 1978. This amended Defence sct
up new grourds of defonce, and it has been a repcetitious complaint
by attorney-at-law for the paintiff that the matters lately pleaded in
the Amended Defence were pleaded seven years after the events which

necesgitated this action!

I am cognisant that an amendment duly made with or without leave,
takes effect, not from the dote when the amendment is made, but from
the date of the original document which it amends (The Supreme Court
Practise 1970 notes to Ordecr 20 rr 5 - 8). "Once pleadings are amended
what stood before amendment is no longer material before the Court and ro

longer defines the issucs to be tried,'" per Hodson 1.7, in Warner V. S1mpson

£719557 1 2.3, at v.uel.

The defence as amended is in the relevant paragraphs 14 -~ 173

4,  The Defendant admits that an understanding
along the lines referred to in vparapgraph 19 of
the Etatement of Claim was made between the
Plaintiff's and Defendantt's representativés, but
denies that the understanding constituted a valid
and binding contrcct. The understanding was a
mere expression of intention (on the part of the
Defendant to excrcise its option contained in
paragraph 32(1) of the aforementioned August
Agreement),

15, The Defendant further says that the alleged
Agreement referred to in paragraph 19 of the
Stotoment of Claim was not, in law, a valid
contract, as it was not supported by valuable
consideration in that the Plaintiff was cbliged
under the August Agreement and more particularly
clause 26 thereof, to carry: adequate stocks of
service parts for the proper and effective
servicing of vehicles.

3
%’
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1540 . In the further alternative, the Defendant
says that if, which is denied, the sz2id allered
Agrecoment constituted a valid contract, the
Nefendant strtes thot the egsential terms thercof

J

are governed by the siid Aupust Agrecmént and
more particularly as sct out in clause 32 (1)

thereof.

158, In the still further alter

ative thoe

n
Defendant says that if which ig deniled, the said -
allered Agrcement constituted & vaiid contract,
the obligations thereunder were discharred as

the part
with the

150«

I

tes have acted in a menner inconsistont

continunnce of the contract.

The Defendant will refer at the hearing

of the Action to the said Aupgust Agreement for

its full

therecof,

precise terms and legal effect

16, The Defendant denies the existence of the
irplied teérms referred to im paragraph 19 of the

Statement of Claim,.

17, After the termination of the Plaintiff's
Chrysler franchise as aforesaid, negotiations
took place botween the Defendent and the Plaintiff

for the

repurchase of new and used motor vehicles

and parts and accessorices in good and saleable
condition. In particular, a specific offer was

made to

repurchnsce thoge items on the terms and

conditions set ocut in a letter dated 24th September,
1969, and written to the Plaintiff by Norman L. Gray
of Chyrsler International, 3.A. This offer was

net accepted, and the negotiations subsequently
broke dcwn.¥

The Plaintiff in its

N4

Reply joined issue, as follows:

nz2, The Plaintiff denies that the vnderstanding
28 an exproessioh of intentfen on the 7ort
of the Defendant to exercise the option

contained in Clause 32(C) of the August
Apreement as alleged in parapgraph 14 of the
Awmeuded Defence and savs thet the Defendant
wade a sepnrate contract inddpendent of the
Aupust Agrecment which was in no way
incorporated therein,

{a) The Plaintiff denies thot the snid
Aprecmént zlleged in paragraph 19 of the
Statement of Claim was not suppoeted by

nny valuable consideration as alleged in
paragraph 15 of the Amended nhefence and says
that the said Agreement is supported by good
and valid consideration in that the
Plaintiff undertook to continue to actively
push and promote the business of the

Nefendant in Jamaica, and not merely to conduct
the business sc as to satisfy the provisions o

Clause 26 of the August Agrecment, and the
Plaintiff did in fact actively promote the
business of the NDefendant in Jamaica as a
censequence of the Said Agreement.
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(b) The Plaintiff further says that there was
good and valuable consideration for the said
Agreement as the Flaintiff rather than
exerciseing its rights under Clause 31(b) of the
August Agreement and bring the business
relationship between the Flaintiff and the
Defendant to an end, continued to carry on
business with the Defendant despite the state

of uncertainty as to whetter or not the
FPlaintiff would be an agent for the Defendant,
and that the FPlaintiff in accordance with the
said Agreement alleged in paragraph 19 of the
Statement of Claim continued its bhusihess
relationship with the Defendant and also to
actively promote the business of the Defendant
in Jamaica

(c) The Plaintiff denies that the said
Agreement alleded in paragraph 19 of the
Statement of Claim was in any way dependent
upon or connected with or governed by the
August Agreement as alleged in para graph 15(a)
of the Amended Defence and repeats paragraph 2
thereof,

(d) The Plaintiff denies that it has ever
acted in any way inconsistent with the
continuance of the said Agreement as dlleged

in paragraph 15(b) of the Amended Defence or at
all,

(e) The Plaintiff says that the Defendant at
no time made a ny attempt to exercise the option
conferred on it by Clause 32(c) of the August
Agreement.,

The Plaintiff repeats paragraph 19 of the
Statement of Claim and says that the said
Agreement referred to therein was a valid and
binding contract and that all the terms of the
said contract were either expressly agreed upon
or are to implied by the sale of Goods lLaw Cap,
349 of the 1953 Revised Laws of Jamaica, The
Plaintiff will rely inter a lia on the following
Sections of the said Sale of Goods Law:-

(1) Section 9(2) as to price,.

(i4) Section 19 Rule (1) as to passing
of property.

(iid) Sections 27 and 28 as to delivery
and payment,

(iv) Section 29(1) as to place of delivery,

As to paragraph 17 of the Defence the Flaintiff
admits that a’letter dated 24th September 1969
was written by Chrysler International S.A. to
the Plaintiff and received by the Plaintiff but
says:

(a ) That the said letter was not written by the
Defendant.
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(b) That the said letter was an attempt
by Chrysler International S.A., to arrange
terms on which Chrysler International S,A.
would purchase from the Plaintiff its stock
eof new unused vehicles and its stock of new
‘'saleable parts,

(c) That this attempt by Chrysler International
S.A. placed the following uniusti-

fiable limitation on the said purchase and

that the same was not in accordance with the
prior Agreement, between the Flaintiff and the
Defendant;-

(1) The vehicles to be purchased were
limited to vehicles shipped to the
Plaintiff before 24th October 1969,

(ii) The parts and accessories to be
purchased were limited to those
shipped to the Plaintiff before
24th October 1969 and which had
shown movement during the 12 month
period from 1st August 1968 to 3lst
July 1969 and to such a quantity as
represented a normal six month demand
in Jamaica,

(d) That the price set out in the said letter
was not a reasonable price in that it represented
the actual cost to the Plaintiff of the said
goods at the delivery door of s Kingsten wharf
leaving no margin for the Plaintiff's expenses

in connection with the said goods,

(e) The said letter put forth an unreasonable
term in that it required the Pla intiff to
execute a full and general release in terms
which were undisclosed at the time and unreason~
able in the circumstances,

In the premises the Plaintiff says that it was
justified in refusing the said terms set out in
the letter dated 24th Beptember, 1969,

On the 7th October 1969 the Plaintiff wrote a letter
letter to Chrysler International S.A, setting

out the terms which it considered represented

a fair price for all the vehicles and parts

which the Defendant was obliged to buy from the
Plaintiff, The said terms contained in this

letter were rejeated by the Befendant,

Save as is herein before expressly admitted the
Plaintiff denies each and every allegation
contained in the Defence as if the same were
herein set out and traversed seriatim."
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The arguments propounded in support of the stated
position of each party encournge o more detailed consideration
of the evidence, starting with the fact that Mr. rthur asserted
that from December 1968, when he assumed full charge of the
business of the plaintiff, to July 1969, wvhen he returned to
Tngland, the sales of motor vehicles and parts by the plaintiff
had improved., And certainly, up to the 28th of January, 1969,

Mr. Srthur could state that considering the support of the

staff the improved circumstances had hecn due to the fact that

sales were running well, and were so  up to the time of termination
on the 26th October, 1969. Support for his unrefutcd account

is found in the letter dated 15th .pril, 1969, from Mr. R. Be. Clarke
to Mre L. Ae Townsend, Chairman of the Toard, Chrysler Corporation
that:

" e have of course many times more than

60 days supply of Rootes parts, ane we
have dene a pood job on unit sales since
Sprostons gave the franchise up two years
a’gO'cocc "

Again, in his letter dated 2nd Scptember, 1969, to
Mre Ge Je Ellison of Rootes Motors Limited, Mr. Clarke stressed
that in the three years since taking up the franchise the plaintiff
had not only VYpushed sales from scratch at 370 per annum tco the
current rate of 548 per annum" but:

" Taking on the Rootes franchise for Jamaica

involved Robinson's in a substantial
investment in premises stocks and staff:
involving as it did approximotely doubling
the size of the businesse "

In this letter too, Mr, Clarke points out that "we
have stocks = ordered and maintained under guidance from your
company as to what was required -~ totalling nearly £60,000,"

A8 a matter of fact, for the six months ending 30th
June, 1969, 306 vehicles had been scld: for the sccond six months

of the year 1969, the units sold totalled 346,



With the projections of good business, it is
quitc clear that on the 2&th day of Janunary, 1969, the plaintiff
would try to maintain the franchise, the oper:stion of which had
resulted in acceptable ;ross profits tc the plaintiff. Said
Mre. Arthur: "From the time it got the franchise, Robinson's was
moaking sure that it did nothing to give thc defendant a reason
to terminate ite 8o much so that when Robinson's was confronted
with a competing situation as to which of two distributers sheuld
get the Chryslery/Rootes franchise, it was being very careful to
see that it did nct lose the franchisce" BSo that it is falr to
say that having just got the franchisc, the plaintiff could not
contemplate terminaticn. It stands to rcason that should it lose
the distributcership, the plaintiff would, notwithstanding, seek to
reQuce the resultant loss to 2s negligible o proportion as was
compatible withtheir delicate situation. They would see how Lest
they cceuld salvage from that predicament, where they had been
deprived of o considerable part of the substratum cf their
operations. It seems to me that it is in this light that the

d
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scussions and negetiaticns between the representatives of the
plaintiff and the representatives of the defendant must be viewed.
FPor the plaintiff, it was decidely a situation of uncertasinties; for
the defendant, the concern was to maintain an operation which in
their undecided outlook was still worth maintaining so that there
would be nc lacunza in the demands of the supply and repair of its
manufactured products on the Jamaica market, Looked at from that
angle, T must also remind mysclf that this is a commercial
transacticn, in which both parties are deeply concerned to retain
commercial viability with the object of underscoring its rclative
interestss. 50 that, the ¢vidence as I sce it, is strongly
indicative that the partics! representatives at all material times
were thinking and discussing on two levels - termination of the
franchise, and in the cvent, disposal of the parts. Let me guote

from the evidence given by Wr. Imus:

€ e
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" It was in Chryslerts interest te continue
selling parts to Hobinson's until termination -
of mutual benclit to both Chrysler for
Robinsonts., Be..oficial to Chrysler for
Robinson's to continue in business for as long
as possiblc until solce distributership decided.
My acourance, hopefully, was to cnsure that
there was continuation of business by Robinzon's,
Naturslly, the whole ex:rcise was to obviate
custonrers!' dissatisfaction uvutil a dealer was
appointods M
Here, T aw faced with the guestion of not only what was
sald during the meeting on the 206%h Januvary, 1969, but also with
the virtue and cfficacy of what was said. Given the admitted
assurance by Mre. Imus, Mr. Muirhcad argued that considering the
wording of Clause 26 of the Lugust Agreement, the plaintiff wns
doing no more that it had already undertaken to do., 4nd the
defendant was really ewercising in advance, the option which was
given to it by Clausc 52(C)s The defendant would not wait until
after the agreement was terminated to indicate how it would
exercise the option within 14 days after the termination of the
franchise, /[ccording to Mrs Muirhead, if there were no Imus
assurance, the obligation of the plaintiff would be unaffected,
in that, it would have to maintsin a normal supply of spare parts
adequate to service the vchicles manufactured by the defendant and
sold by the plaintiff in the territory of Jamaica,.
It mecms to me that this argument is not flawless.
Firstly, it must overceme the proecise language of Clause 32(C),
which favourably to the defendant, allows the defendant to decide
whether it would rcepurchasc the parts, But such a decision was not
exercisable until after termination. There would even at that
time be no obligation to repurchase. Tt was a matter of discretion
whether the defendant would scrve s notice of its intention to
repurchasec,
The relevant tcerms of the fugust Agreement must not be
construed as essentially an irrevocable offer by the plaintiff to

the defendant of the Service Parts unsold at the date of the receipt

of the notices To tiis extent the plaintiff could not compel the



defendant to repurchase, but, 1f and when the defondant pave the
requisite notice it would have become a conditional unilateral
contract in the terms of Clause 32(C)es This is worthwhile bearin:
in mind in the proper assessment of the submissions by Mre. Muirhcad,
I find some support for, and exemplification of, this point

of view in the rcnort of the judiment in United Dominion Trust

Commercial Limited v, Tagle rdircraft Service Ltd. (1968)1 W,L.R.

744 There the Tacts for consideration were that an aircraft was
sold to a finance company, and let on hircpurchase. The sellers
undertock to repurchase if the hirepurchase agreement was terminatoed
before the whole price was paide The repurchase undertaking was
linked with the¢ hirepurchasce agreement. The court held that the
repurchase undertaking was a unilateral obligation which had not
bind the sellers unless the specified conditions were fulfilled.
So that the failurc of the finance company to comply with the main
condition precedent, that on termination of the hirepurchase agreenent
the finance company should call on the defendants to repurchase within
a reasonable time of the termination, relicved the defendants of any
obligation to repurchase the sircraft.
It is instructive, first of =21ll, to tnke note of the remarks
in the judgment of Lord Denning M,R, at p. “0 letters G - P, pe 01
letter C:
" It has been shown, cuite correctly, that the agreement

to repurchase was not an ordinary bilateral contracte.

It was o unilateral contract of & kind which docs not

become binding on both sides until a condition

precedent is performeds. It is like a lease in which

the lessee is piven an option to renew the lease for a

further term. Such zleésses usually covemants to kecyp

the promises in repair during term and is given an

option to renew if he gives notice before the end of

the term and duly performs all the covenants to repair.

He is not entitled to excusc himself by saying that the

want of rcpair is trifling. The cases start with the

judgment of Lord Ystburn in Weston v. Collins (1865)
12 .,J, 4, and go on to the judgment of Jones L,J., in

Finch v, (1376) 2 ch. D. 319 C.f., which was
followed in Hare v, Nicoll /—9067 A8, and 'est
County Cleans (Falmouth)Ltd? Oly /4965 1 ,L.R, 1435,

In point of legal analysis, the grant of an option
in such cases, is an irrevocable offer (being supported
by considoration so it cannot be revoked). In order
to be turned into a binding contract, the offer nmust be
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" accepted in exact cowmrliance with its terms.
The acceptance must correspond with cane offer, "

Again at page 02 at letter T he reiterated:

" T think it plain that the obligation to repurchase

never care into beinz unlizss the conditions

precedent were fulfilled, U
A comment made morce forceful by the words of the obligation "we
will, when called upon to do so, forthwith repurchase from you the
aircraft.m

In this case, when Mr, Imus gave his assurance, noticec of
termination had not becn givens One of the reasons for his
assurance was because he wanted Robinson's to continuc in business
until he could make o decision, and in my view, he was therefore
not meking an c¢lection to purchase in the circumstances envisaged
by the August lgreement. In rezlity his offer on 28th January,
1969, to repurchase was in anticipation of a probable reduction in
stock because of the admitted uncertainty and indecision regarding
termination, and was an attenpt to forestall any damaging results
to Chrysler's intercsts,.

The hesitancy, as well as the undecided state of mind of the
defendant's representatives was, ir my view, o dominant factor in the
thinking of both partics. Although the defendant's representatives
had intimated the likelihood of the plaintiff not setting the com-
bined franchise, no final decision had been taken up to the 28th day
of January, 1969, This was still the position even up to the 15th
April, 1969, when by letter, Mre. Re Fe Clarke complained to
Mre. L, A, Townsend, Chairmsn of the Board of Chrysler Corporation,
inter alia, that "Robinson's were being kept on tenter-hooks by
recurring by-weckly (sic) unkept promises of a definite decision on
the failure of the Rootes agency.'

Mre Muirhead's argument raises a further consideration in
that although both Mr. fLrthur and Mr. Imus stated that they cach
had the August igreement in mind, neither specifically brought it

to the attention of the other. There was no discussion al all zbout
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20,
the terms of the fugust Agroement. DBut wcccordins to Mr, fArthur, it
was within the terms of the [upust igrecment, that he sought to
ensure that Chrysler repurchasc the coars and the parts. Mr Inus
himself, in examination-in~chief, stated that he was aware of the
dealership agreement and he gave his assurance with repgard to
Upurchase under thz terms of the agreement. When T spoke of
repurchase of all new vehicles and all current parts, I had in mind
Clause 32(¢) of the contract.m

It is herc that one finds a strong indication of what I
described carlicr as the two levels of the discussions and nesotiations,
Mhe question of the repurchase of the parts by the defendant, 4id not,
on my reading of the evidence, arise until after the enquiry by
Mr. .rthur as to how lonp it would take before the defendant notified
the plaintiff of thce termination and also of the chances for
Robinson's obtaining the new franchise. Emincently, o new franchise
would have to be awarded, regardless of which of the existing
franchise-holders acquired’tho connined franchisc. In this event,
the anxiety of Mr, frthur is crystallised in this piece of evidenco:

" T knew that under the contract Chrysler had the right

not to purchase anything at all. And to protect my
comypany, I wonted Chrysler to tell me then that they
would repurchase parts anid units and not leave me
high and dry with them., Imus gave me the assurance
thot on termination they would repurchase parts and
unitb‘. 1

I am not unmindful of the fact that these two experienced
businessmen were aware of their rights, but to my mind in January
1969, they were discussing on entirely new situation, that is, the
prospects of a combined franchises. This wos not then a case of
termination according to the contract. It was a situation calling
for negotiations beneficial to cach party, regardless of the
respective rights under the Lgreement. I must stress that the
repurchase of parts, was not an obligation until the defendant clected
to do so within 14 days after termination of the August igreement.
Interestingly, it sccems to me that the plaintiff would not be able
to sell the then available perts until after 14 days cfter termi-

nation, and if the defend:nt had not dthin that period of tiwme

&S Al
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indicated by notice that it opt=d to repurchasce the unsold parts,.
The enquiry as to whet was sald on the 28th January, 1969,
is assisted by the evidence nrovided by Mr., Imus' letter of May O,
1969, This letter to Mre Claorke was in reply to the points raiscd
in the latter's letter to Mr. Townscnd, In nart his lctter of
May &, 1969, rcported:

n We promised tho Robinson managemcnt to resolve

the problem /?o have onliy one Chrysler products
dealer in Kingston? as soon as possible with minimum
disruption of business, In this regard we encouragced
Robinson to continue ordering parts and vehicles with
the assurance we would repurchase all new vehicles
and current parts 1f the decision was made in favour
of Mebep Sales and Scrvice.

Sdmittedly, it has taken longer to work out the
details, on nn equitable basis, than we had antici-
pated. Converscly, it has given your pecople time to
liguidatce obgolete inveonteorics and used units. If
they did not corder new vehicles, or parts, it would
scem they cither 4id not understand completely our
agsgurance for repurchase or they elected to wait for the
final decisions. "

Mre Lrthur describod this letter as reflecting accurately
the assurance given by Mre Imus on the 28th January, 1969. If this
letter correctly rccords the agrecment on parts reached between
Rebinsont's ond Chrysler, the conclusion cannct be avoilded that
Mr, . rthurts rccollection of Mre. Imus' undertaking that Robinson's
‘'would suffer no loss,™ is at first blush not sustained. On the
other hand, the crosc-examination of Mr, Imus elicited the admission
that this letter of May 3, 1969, did not mention nor even refer to
the fupgust /greement in so far as that was expressed 1in oral
evidence as the confines for his assurance. He intended to bind his
principalse It is not stated therein that the option was exerciscd
in January, 1969, This, it scems to me, for one thing, crascs
effectively the notion that the Imus assurance was a mere understanding
and nothing morc than an cxpression of intention.

Although, as I have recounted, he denied that he did say
that Robinson's would suffer no loss if they acted on the Imus

Assurance, Mre Imus did appreciate that i1f Robinscn's did order parts

end the franchise was terminatecd, they woull sustain a loss without
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an essurance from him. This appreclation as he 'so understood the
way the gquestion was askeds’ To the following question: "Did you
appreciate that without your assurance there was likelihood of hinm
(irthur) not ordering any new vehicles and parts?" Mr Imus replicd:
e indicated that before I gave the assurén?e.” Realising the
inevitability of loss, it is underctandable that Mr, Imus gave Phis
assuranhce to encourage hin to continue ordering new vehicles and
parts.”" However, he modified this by diéglaiming that "I was not
giving the assurance to protec§ Robinson's against any loss in
continuing to order vehicleshnd parts if angency terminated." So
much 50, as he explained, the protection which he wvas siving
Robinson's for ordering new vehicles and parts wae thot they would
get back from Chrysler the same amount of money that they had nnid
for ordering new vehicles and parts. At the soame time when he gave
the assurance, appreciating as he did that to import rorts into
Jamaics involves such items as costs incurred for getting the zoods
from the wharf to the warchouse, and that certain ducs and taxcs
hove to be paid, Mr. Imus asserted that Ywhen I gave the assurance

in Januury, I intended to cover the protection of those costs that
were included in the nett landed coste." For the time being, I will
not deal with the controversy as to the nature of the costs involved,
because I am at this juncture concerned to determine the substance of
the assurance and so decide whether a velid contract, separate and
apart from the Aupgust igreement, was made in Januory 1969,

Reverting to the letter of May 6, 1969, I compare it with paragraph
19 of the Statement of Claim in which the weords "stock of current
parts! appeare. I note also the words "a large stock of current parts"
in paragraph 22 of the Statement of Claim,.

In these pleadings nothing is explicitly said about
"suffering no loss" although upon censideration of the recollection
of Mre Arthur and Mr, Imus, it is not putting a strain on it to say
fhat that was the effect of the conversation on January 28, 1969.

Before I pass ony I would draw attention again to the terms of

5
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Clause %2(C) of the fugust iAgreement, whoreby the option when
exercised at the approprizte and »nroper time, that is, after
terminztiony would be the elecction of the company to purchase Vany or
#ll vehicles and parts unsold at the date of the receipt of the
notice at the nett landed cost to the Distributor which shall make
available such Vchicles and Service Parts to the compaany upon tender
of payment eeee ' This, to my mind, is an entirely different ground
of repurchase from that recorded as the terms of the Imus Assurance,
and iﬁ‘certainly an additional factor in the conclusion that the
Imus Assurance was not part and parcel of the August Agrecmente
Herc, I think cne¢ should draw 2 distinction between the intrinsic
nature of such an Agrecement vis-a-vis the Assurance, and the back-
ground of facts which mave rise to the ‘ssurange vhich did not itsclf
depend for its creation and implementation on the precise and exact
terms and conditions of the /jugust fgreement,

My finding that the Imus sgurance rcsulted in an agreement
independent of the August Aprcement is the non-acceptance of the
strong view submitted by Mr., Muirhcad that since each representative
from his particular vantage point had agreed on the basic relevance
vf the fugust lLgreement to the relationship between the principals,
thereforc, this proves that the Imus lgreement could not be an
independent, collateral apgrecement, but rather it was an express term
of the existing agreement, so that, according to Mr. Murihead, the
Imus issurance would become an express term of the ALugust Agreement
in the event of termination and in fact determining in advance, how
the defendant would act under the August fAgreement in the event of
termination asirggards the repurchase of cars and parts. He Toundad

this proposition on the judgments in the case of J. Evans & Son V.

Asndrea Merzario /i97§7 2 211 TeRe 930, The headnote sets out the

facts as follows:

" The plaintiffs werc importers of machines from
Italy. Since about 1959 they had contracted
with the defendents, who were forwarding agents,
to make the transport arrangements for the
carriapme of goods to Bnpland o The course of
dealing between the partics was on the standnrd
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" conditions of the forwarding trade., DPrior to
1967 the defendante had arranged for Jransportation
of the poods in crates or trailers which were always
shipped unler deck because the machinoes wore lish
to rust if carried on deck., In 1967 the defendan
proposed changing over to transportastion in
contalners, In discussions on the matter between
then and the plaintiffeo, the Jefondants ve the
plaiatiffs an cral asourance that wachines
subzequently transported in containers would he
shippod under declse On the faith of that oral
assurance, the plaintiffs agrecd to the chanze
over te container transport, accented the defeondontta
new quotations QGF such transport ond nave the
defendants an order for the curriage of an
ingpection moulding machine in a container. Because
of an oversight on the part of the defendants the
container was shippced te Bngland on deck. Lt the
start of the voyage the ship met a swell which
caused the container to fall off the deck aud the
machine was lost overboard. The printed standard
conditions of the forwarding trade which werc
incorporated in the coentract of carriage contained
clauses which pgave the defendonts complete freedom
in respect of the meons and the procedurc to be
followed in the Transportation of the goods, subject
to any cexpress written instructions given by +he
plaintiff, they exempted the defendants from
liability for loss cr domagce to the goods unless
the loss or demage occurred whilst the moods were
in their actual custody ond by reason of their wil-
ful neglect or default, ond limited the defendants
liabllity for loss or damage to affixed amount.
The plaintiffs claimed damages agalnst the
defendants for loss of the machine, alleging that
the carringe of the container on deck had been a
btcaeh of the contract of carriage. "

1

The defendants had argued that there wes no contract between
the parties that the containers should be carried under decke. In
pddition to this, the defendents sought to establish that even if
there was such a contract, they relied on the printed terms and
conditions to exempt them from any liability. In the process of
rejecting the reliance on the conditiocn, the Court of Appeal
(Lord Denning, M.R., Roskill and Geoffrey Lane, L .JJ., had to pro-
nounce on the relevance and effectiveness of the oral assurzlce.

Tach judgment stressed the binding nature of the oral assurance, which
had been made in order to indnce the plaintiff to agreec to the trans-
port of the goods in containsrs., And despite the fact that the
plaintiff had accepted the gquotations for the new changes for

carrying the contﬁiners, and that Invoices were sent and the goods
carriced on the usual terms and conditions of the lforwarding trado,

the Court of Appenl held that the defendants could not roely on the
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" There is no dispute that the terms of the
printed contract had by the time of this
particular incident by the course of
deslinge become o pert of each individual con-~
tract betiucen the ylaintiffs and the defendnnt
in so far 2o they arc apposite.  There is

equally no doubt that if they are to be

applied to this new express term and appliel
literally they would rondery the term valus-
less to the plaintiffs, "

I point c¢ut that apart from the course of dealing being
on the standard cenditions of the forwrrding trade, the printed
standard conditions gave the forwarding agents complete frecdom
over the means and pradedure to be followed on the trnasportaticn
of goecds, subject to express written instructions. In the
foregeing circumstances, I do wot accept the submission that
because therce were no existing obligation in the Evans case by
which the plaintiff was bound, in contrast te the instant case
where the plaintiff was bound under an existing obligetion of
the fupust Agreement to mnintain adequate stocks, to maintain
proper maintenance of vchicles, and to carry out other obhlizations
of the Agreement, thercfore, the matter of principle can be
casily resolveds .As in Ivans the gtate of mind of the partics at
the time of assurance is 2 vital factor in resolving the matter
of principle. There was a meeting of minds betweon the
accredited represcentatives of the parties, and there was an
expectation of the fulfilment o7 the promisc explicitly made in
the encouragement of the Imus Assurance. At the end of the
meeting on the 28th January, 1966, both parties believed, and
indeed, understood, that there was an agreement which would be
carried out. Mr. Imus intended to bind his principals. He
intended the plaintiff to act upon his assurance as busincssmena

In this light, it cannot be too often stressced, that the
business efficacy of the assurance must not be illuscry. In
support of this I maeke no apologies for quoting the following

words of Lord Denning, M.,R, in the case of Mendelssohn v. Normand

/I9707 1 Q.B. 177 ut papes183 letter H - 184 letter B.

o4
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nm There arc many cascs in the books when a man has
nade, Ly word, of mouth, = promise or a
representation of fact, on which the other party
acts by entering inte the contract. Tn =11 such
cagses the man is not «llowed to repudiate his
representation by refoerence te a printed condition,
see Couchmen v, Hill /194?7 KB 554; Curtis v,

Chemical Cleaning nnﬂnyean CCoe /I9§I7~Tmﬁ§“805;

and Horling v, Lady /10517 2 BB 7393 nor is he

allcwed to o brck on his promise by reliance on

a written clause, sce City of Vestminister Properties

(1934) Ltd. ve Mwid /1959/Ch. 129, 1L5 by Harman  L.d.

The rénson ip becaus€ the oral promise or represen-—

tation has a decisive influence, on the transaction -

it is the very thing which induces the other to

contrect = and it would be most unjust to allow the

maker to go back on it. The printed condition is

rejected because it is repugnant to the express

oral promise o1 representations. 45 Devlin J. said in

Fircstone Tyrec & Hubber Co. Ltd, v. Vokins & Co. Ltd,

/19517 1 Lloydts Report 33, 593 'It is illusory to say

'we promise to do a thing, Lut we are not liable 1if

we do not do ite' To avoid this illusion the law

gives the oral promise nriority over the printed

clausc.' "

In the circumstances of the instant case, the Imus
Assurance was the decisive influence in the plaintiffs' continuance
of the ordering of parts.

I find as o fuct, that Mr. Imus did have authority on
the 26th January, 1969, to bind the defendant, and nothing which
took place after that, whether disclosed by correspondence, or
ad¢uced by the oral cvidence, has released them from the
obligations of the¢ assurance then given, His encouragement to the
plaintiff to continue to order parts and he would repurchasc those
parts which remained at the termination of the franchise to
Robinson's was unqualified. It was a unilateral promise which was
transformed inte a binding contract by the plaintiffts ordering of

parts between January, 1969, and July, 1969,

It must be remembered that this was o commercial agrecment,

and "In commcrcial agreements it will be presumed that the partics
intend to create legmnl rolations and make a contract., /lthough the
courts will not make o contract for the parties whore none exists,
they will seck to upheld bargains made between businessmen wherever
pessible, recognising thoat they often record the most iumportant

agreements in crude and summnry fashion, and will scek to construc
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" entrance fee nnd win the race, I will pay you
£100) no obligaticns upon the part of the promisce
result from it »211. But in its more complex and
more usual form, as in an option the promlsor's
undertaling may be to eater into =
synallagamatic contract with the promisee upon
the occurance of the event specified in the
unil-teral contract, ond in that casc the event
sc specified must be, or at leose include, the
conmunication by thw promisce to the promiscr
of the promiscets acceptonce of his cblizations
under the gynallogamatic contracte. By entering
into the subscquent synallagamatic contract
upon the occurrence of the specified event, the
promisor discharges his obligation under the
unilateral contract and accepts new obligations
under the synallagamatic contract, aAny
obligations of the promisec arisc, not on the
unilateral contract, but out of the subsequent
synallagamatic contract into which he was not
obliged to enter but has chesen to do sc.

UTwo consequences follow from this., The
first is that there is no room for any inquiry

as to whether any nct done by the promisce in
purported performance of a unilateral contract
amounts to a breach cf warranty or a breach of
condition on his part, for he is under no
obligation to do or to refrain from dolng any act
at alle The sccond is that as respects the promisor,
the initial enquiry is whether the event, which
under the unilatceral ceontract gives rise to
obligations on the part of the promisor, has
occurred, To that ingquiry the answer can only be
a simple 'yes' or 'no's The event must be
identified by its description but if what has
aceurred dees ncet comply with that description,
there is an end of thoe matter. It is not for the
court to ascribe any different consequences to
noncempliance with one part of the description

of the event than tec any other part if the
parties by their contract have not done so. See
the case about options YWeston v, Collins 12 I1,T.
4y 5; Hare v,. Nichol /190667 2 QB 130,

"For the inquiry here is: tWhat have the
parties agreed to do%?' - not what are the
consequences of their having failed to do what
they have agrced to do%?' @s it was in the Hong
Keng Tir case /19627 2 QR 26, Such an inguiry cannot
arise under a unilAteral contract unless and until
the event giving rise to the promisor's
obligations has occurred,

"While, for simplicity in analysing the relevant
differences in legol character, I have spoken of
synallapgamatic and unilateral of *ift' contracts it
would be more accurate to speak of synallagomatic and
unilateral obligations, for obligations of these two
different kirds nre often contained in a single

agreement, s where a lease contains on option for renewall!

For completeness, I should repcat his Lordshipts definition of contracts

. iy . .
which are synallagamatic or bilateral, <These nre contracts in which -
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" each party undertakes to the other party to do or
to refrain from deing something, and in tha event
of his failurc to perform his undertaking, the
law provides the cother party with a remedy. The
remedy of the other party may be limited to
recovering nonetary compensation for any loss
which he has sustained as o result of the failure
without relieving him from kis own obligation to
do that which he himgelf hos undertaken teo do and
has not yet done or to continue to refrein from
doing that which he himself has undertaken to
refrain from doinge. Or it may in addition,
entitle him, if he so elccts, to he released from
any further obligation tc do or to refrazin from
doing znything. The Hong Kong Fir case was
concerned with the principles applicable in
determining what kind of fazilure by one party to
a synallagamatic contract to perform his under-
taking relecases the other party from an obligation,
which ex hypothesi has alrecady ccome into existence
to continue to perform the undcrtaken given by
him in the contract. The mutual obligations of

aa
parties tc a synallagematic contract may be

subject to conditions precedent, that is to say,
they may not arise until o prescribed event has
occurred, but the event must nct be one which one
party can prevent from occurring, for if it is, it
leaves that party free to decide whether or nct he
will enter into any obligations tc the other party
at all. The obhligations under the contract lack
that mutuality which is an essential characteristic
of a synallagamatic contract. M

My finding of fact that the plaintiff did order vehicles
and parts in reliance on the Imus Assurance wns the acceptance of
the unilateral nature of the promisce by the defendant. This
ordering of parts continucd up to the 25th sugust, 1969, when
notice of termination was given to the plaintiff., It cannot be
overlooked that the plaintiff had been encouraged to continue to
order parts in the normal pattern, and Mr. Arthur gave evidence
that he maintained a normal pattern after the mecting on the
29th January, 1969. "The normal pattern’ he described as invelving
expansion and development of the agency. 4An indication of what
this meant in practical terms is provided by evidence of a
meeting on the 29th February, 1969, between Messrs. Clarke and
Arthur for the plaintiff anpd Mr. Schroeder for the defendant.

At that meeting, two significant things cccurred., First, during
the discussion on the parts! situation, Mr, Schroeder confirmed

to Mr. Clarket's specific cnguiry, the undertaking given in

=

January, and Mr. Schroeder himself reiterated the encouragement

ef
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printed conditions containing the exemption clause.

Observing that nothing was put into writing about the

poeds being carried under deck, Lord Denning, M.R. opined that

Ythere was

agentse’

with an assurance a5 to the future . Fe underlined the

a plain breach of the cral promise by the forwording

o

n

o

of the Courts -

1Al

soeee nowadays to collateral ccecntracts, vhen a
pérgon :ives o promise or an assurance to another
intending that he should act cn it by entering
into a2 contract, we hold thet it is binding. Sce
Dick Pentley Productions Ltd, ve Harcold Smith
(Motors) Ltd. /19657 I .L.L. 625. That casc was
concerned with = roprescutation of fact, but it
applies also to promises as to the future. ™

(pe 93% lotters 4 - ©)

Roskill sand Geoffery Lance, L.JJ. agrecd that the appeal

approach

On the facts of the case he said "ee.. we are concerned

should be allowed for the reasons given by Leord Denning, M.3. it

]

Ppe 934 letter j - 935 lctter a, Roskill, L.J. expressed his views

in thcse words:

t

It secms to me as it seems to Lord Denning, MLR,
absolutely plain thet the plaintiffs thought that
they had ot an assurance from the defendants if
the plaintiffs ingtead of using the trailers which
had hithcerto nlways been shipped under deck, were
to allow the defendants to ship the plaintiffs!
goods in containers, thoese containers, like the
trailer before them, would be shipped under deck.
The learned judge said that all the defendants

gave was an assurance, they did not pive a
guarantees, The real guestion as I venture to think,
is not whether one calls this an assurance or a
cguarantee, but whethe®¥ that which was said amounted
to an enforceable contractual promise by the
defendants to the plaintiffs that any ;joods, there-
after cntrusted by the plaintiffs to the defendants
for carriage from Milan to the United Kingdom via
Rotterdam and then by sea to Ingland, would be
shipped under deck. The matter was apparcently
argued before the learned judge on behalf of the
plaintiffs on the bagis that the defendants!
promise (if any) wns what the lawyers sometimes
call a collateral oral warranty. That phrase is
normally only applicable where the original promise
was extornal to the main contract, the main
contrnct being o contract in writing so that
usually parol evidence cannot be given to contrazdict
the terms of the written contract. The basic raie
is clearly statcd in the latest cdition of Benjamin
on Sale (9th eodition 1974, para 742) to which I
refer but will not repeat. But that doctrine, as
it secems to me has no application where one is not
concerncd with a contract in writing (with respect,

Ty
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that the plaintiff should continug to buylparts, making auite clea
that the bvona fldes of the defendant was unguestionable with these
words: "Remember you are dealinge with o multinstional corporation
and not a backysrd deazler.t I mm in nco doubt that at that meeting
Ir, Arthur brought to the attention ¢f Mr. Schroeder that he then
had on his desk an order for parts to the extent of £8,000 whieh
in the normal course ¢f procedurc he would Le placing. Mr. Arthur
described Mr. Schroederis reaction: "He scemed very pleased,' Tt is
instructive to note alsc that after hearing what Mr. Schroeder had
said about the parts, Mr. Clarke felt that Robinson's had an
arrangement which in the circumstances was the hest it could get,
considering that Mr. Schroeder tcld them to "Keep on ordering parts
and Chrysler will see that you are not the losers." To this T will
2dd that in April, 1969, Mr. Arthur had every rcason to believe that
egreement would have been honouredy and sc there would have been mo
cause for concerh about having more than 60 days supply of parts,
"In the absence of the Imus Assurance I would have had grave
concern regarding over 60 days supplye Thatts the reason why T
raised it."

It becomes clear at this point that evaluatioﬁ of the fore-
going evidence must be cognisant of the thinking of each of the
principals., TFirstly, Mr. Imus wanted both Motor Sales and Service
Limited and the plaintiff to continue in business until one was
chosen for the combined franchisc¢. This was one of the reasons
why he encouraged the plaintiff to continue until he made a
decisions He added: "It was in Chrysler's interest tc continue
selling parts to Robinson's until termination -~ of mutual benefit
to both Chrysler and Robinson'se" So there was the hope that he
was thereby insuring Robinson's continuing in business and such
would certainly be beneficial to Chrysler, For the e¢lucidation of
this position, I will quocte Mr. Clarke's evidence as to the reasons
why he thought, after speaking to Mr. Schrocder, that the arrange-

ment confirmed by the letter was best for Robinson's as well as for

PR
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Rootes: "It scemed clear tc me that if it wos proving difficult for
them to make up their mind between twe rival firms, it was an
csasential reguirement for them that necctictions could be carried
on under conditions where Chrysler was not frnced with a deadline.
iiere therc to e such o deadline, Chrysler wonld have found itself
negotiating from weokness boecrusce of the important requircment to
maintain continuity of promotion and sale of their products on the
island, Furthermore, I finally thought that whoever finally took
the agency should have a proper full stock of perts already cardexed
over two and a half years; rather than to have to do as Robinson's
had had to dof which was to build up for the first year or so from
scratchs" |
He elaborated on the point of view of Chrysler negotiating
by a deadline :nd from weakness in thiz way: "Supposing either one
of twe edlrcumstances; the first being thet we cut down our parts
supply to 60 days, =znd the sccond being that we gave 60 days!
notice to Chrysler, then Chrysler/Roctes weuld be in the same
position they had becen two and half years previously - hawking their
franchise around dealers who in consequcnce would have been nore
able to dictate their cwn terms, which might, for iunstance, have \
been the retention by the desler of a rival distributorship which |
Chrysler would have preferred to sece relinquished.' This evidence
\
I find is merely the reiteration and elaboration of the thoughts \
which Mr. Clarke had essayed in his letter dated 15th april, 1969, |
to Mre Le Ae Townsend that "it is im my opinion only a matter of i
wecks before the Puttocks Holdings'! directors on the Robinson's ¥
board will feel it their duty to advise the company to close }
down voluntarily." This opinion was expressed because of the
vacillation of the defendant. Such an event, he opined, would bhe
disadvantageous to the Chrysler Corporation; ""Because of the
interruption of Rootes products (handling the largest share of your
products in Jamaica, I believe) for the second time in about two
years; and bhecause it could weaken your negotisting position with

Motor Sales.
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The respective ratiocinations are not exclusive but
complementaory; expressing as they do, the thinking of men
experienced in the automotive industry. Robinson's maintaining
the status~-quo was vital to the futurce operations of Chrysler in
Jamaica, and it scems to me that when Mr., Imus gave his
assurance he was then and there securing the interests of his
principals, so that they would not suffer o loss. He firmly bound
his company by an offer which was acted upon when the plaintiff
ordercd parts in reliance on the assurance, LS8 Mr. Arthur pointed
outy if he had not had the assurance he would not have continued
the orders. "I was faced with a situation which meant that in
January, 1969, I had adequote stocks. I maintained adequate
stocks because of his assurance which is what I was obliged to do
under the pugust Agreement.' As he o¢xplained later, if Robinson's
was to remain in the race fcr the franchise, he would not do
anything to cause his stoeck of varts to fall below what he con-
giderced adequate for the January narkef.

The purchase of the parts subsequent to the Imus ASsurance
was the responsibility of Mre Keith Tomlinson, whe had been
employed te Robinson's for over twenty years, and had worked in
the sparce parts department of the plaintiff for all those 20 years.
At the timce of giving evidence, he had been the manager of the
Parts Department for the past 10 years and that department, he
éxplained, was concerned with ordering spare parts not only for
motor vehicles but was also concerned with agricultural as well
as industrial cquipments He gave evidence about the purchase of
certain Rootes parts from Sprostons, the immediately preceeding
franchise-holders from Rootes,. He was in charge of the purchase of
these parts from Sprostonse.e It was a selective purchase which
was effected on the basis of information gleaned from Sprostons!
catalogue, cardex and master price list of Roctes., This was in
1966, when lists were compiled from the cardex system, indicating

what i1tems Robinson's would purchase, on the basis of 211 fast
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moving items. The criterion for determining these wane any iten
which had moved over a year periode Those parts the plaintiff
took bearing in wmind thedir opolication and the population of the

2pplied., The plaintiJf took cver also parts which they
units o which they Aere oblired te c-rrye These were sclected

~

from the parts catalogue covering the Aifferent items depending
on which was crucial. TIncluded in theso Were cerr boxes and

differentials, together with certain slower moving ¢

gine spare
partse All these parts purchased from Sprostons appeared on the
1966 Rootes Master Price List.

The value of the stock acquired in 1966 from Sprostons
was £12,000; and, Mr. Tomlinson stated, at lcast 99 percent of thoese
parts bought moved during the two and a half years when the
plaintiff operated the Rootes dealership., Those parts were sold
and recorded normally in the normal process of recording.

For the duration of the operation by the plaintiff of the
Roctes franchise the stock of parts was maintained at a normal
stocking level of approximately six to seven months., Certainly,
this was so in the period January - August 1969. It was business
as usual - goods ordered and delivered, The plaintiff during the tenure
of the distributorship had to do besic coverage of the new Hunter
ranpe of cars in particular, viz, Hilman, Humber Seeptre, Sunbean,
Rapier, Hillman Imp, as well as commercial units ranpging from
three quarterkton vans to 10 ton trucks. The plaintiff was obliged
tc stock parts for these vehicles, and this was in addition to the
items which had been acquired from Sprostons. Between September,
1966, and September, 1969, 50% of the stock orderecd from Rootes
related to the new range of vehiclese. The other 50% would relate
to replacing stock which were taken over from Sprostons.

Supplementary to the fact of the purchases is the fact of
value of the sales for the years 1967, 1968, 1969. These figures
were supplied by Mre Arthur, referred to Rootes parts only, and are
at net sales value., From 1967, the relevant figure was £50,000;

for 1969, it was £54%,000 up to September, 1969, it was £66,000,
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He went on to say that in 1907, the »laintiff spent £71,000 for
the minium stock for four months. At that time, there wos no
record giving an indication of what the demand would be, but
initially, prudently, more stock is taken thon one necessarily
requires. sAnalysing the given figures further, Mr. Airthur
described 1968, as the establishing period during which the normal
processing of stock would meet the demand. He said considerably
more parts were sold in the yecar 1969, The actual purchases for
cleven months of 1969, were £29,698.104, ith a developing market,
he told Mr., Muirhead, the plaintiff reduced the purchase of parts,
but lnecreased the sales of moter cars.

Conjoined with the foregoing is the information thatrthe
Jamaican market differs from the IFuropean market, It was Mr., Imus
who confirmed that the life span of a motor vehicle varies widely
between various countries, Tor instance, the life span of a motor
vehicle in the United States of smericz is about seven years, whereas
in Mexico they do not lest ae long as threec ycars. JThere was
evidence that vehicles are operated for o much longer period of time
in Jamaica, Mr, Imus concecded that o car can be as old as seven
years, and one cam still obtain perts for it.

The term "current parts" was defined by Mr. Imus by
reference to the Master Price List, which does not necessarily mean
parts which are being manufactured. Although parts are mat being
manufactured, they can be current if they appear on the Master
Price List. Parts remain current on the Master Price List for
a varying number of years = according to Mr. Tomlinson, ten years,
Mr. Tomlinson gave this opinion as the result of his wide
experience in the trade. Unless there is supersession of a part,
or the manufacturers decide the selling rate of a particular item,
if it deoes not achieve 2 given standard, it can be deleted. Those
parts which appear in thce Manuracturert's Master Price List are
available for their units. Parts would be produced according to

their selling rate,

BhO



This judgment must pay due note to the argument for the
defendant that the conduct of the partics subsequent to the Imus
ABsurance shows that no contract had ever been entered into, or
if so it is strong evidence of action inconsistent with the
exlstence of such a contract. &s I understand the genersl
principle, an agreement cannot be construed in the light of the

subsequent acticns of the parties: se¢ ner Sir John Pennycuick in

Bushwall Properties v. Vortex Properties ZT97§7 A1l B.R., I 287 at

page 293 letter f., 1In the light of this general principle, I refer

to firstly, the meetings of the 10th July, 259, between Mr. Arthur
and Mr. Hirst for the plaintiff, and Mr. ..damson and Mr. Hartoonn

for the defendant. It was at this meeting that oral notice &
termination was given by the defendant's representatives who
promised to confirm the notice in wrifing. This oral notice was

to take effect on the 1lhth October, 1969, More importantly, the
gquestion of parts was raiscd and this elicited from Mr. Hartman the
promise that he would be arranging for a partsman to come to

Jamaica immediately to look at the stocke He also said that if
Motor Sales and Service did not taoke the parts "we (Chrysler) will
take the parts." He solicited Mr, .Arthur!s advice as to a suitable
location for storing the stock. Up to when Mr, /‘rthur left Jamaica
in July, 1969, the pattsman had not come to Jamaica.. I do not think
that this can be used to argue against the binding nature of the
Imus Assurance, because I regard the promise by Mr. Hartman as being
no more than the fulfilment ¢f the undertaking given by Mr. Imus

in January,'l969, and which I find to the knowledge of Chrysler

had been acted upon by the plaintiff. It is striking that on the
11th July, 1969, when the same representatives met again, Mr. Hartman
informed his counterparts for the plaintiff that his head office had
confirmed what had been discussed in general terms the day before.
Strikingly too, Mr. Arthur stated that he only expressced dicappoint-
ment at losing the franchisc. I do not accept that it was

necessary for him to then mention the Imus Assurance because that

/
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was never, in my vicw of the evidence, in any doubt or controversy.
The question of parts was apnin discussed on the 16th
September, 1969, Llthough the auestion of purts wes not the only
matter discussed ot this meetins, Mr. [Jamson, representing the
defendant, reported that Motcr Scles and Service had no place to
storc them. This evoked from Mre Clarke the protist that the
franchise having been terminated, yet no propor arrang.ments had
been made for the new franchise~hclders properly to take on the
franchisc,
Previous to this by his letter dsted 2nd September, 1969,
to Mr. Ge J, Bllison, Mr. Clarke had scught Y"to get something
clarified at least in relation to the parts situation, where we
have stocks - ordered and mezintained under guldance from your
company as to what was required, totalling nenrly £60,000 at cost."
This paragraph ante-dated his oral protest on the 16th September,
1969, and broached Mr. Clarke's concern thot no proper arrangemcnise
had been made regarding the pertse The time for effective
termination was fast approaching and the plaintiff was faced with
an operation which entailed the procedure of removel of each part
item from bins, counting, listing, pricing and pecking, followed by
the necessary delivery to some other places In fact, Mr. Clarke
could not see how this could ce¢ffectively be done, where over 179,000
parts "equivalent to a landed cost today of ﬁS0,000" were involved.
In his view, it could not have been done in less than three months.
4s 1t turned out, Mr, Tomlinson and his team were able to complete
this substantial operation in six weeks.

Mr, Tomlinson had becn assigned to do the removal of
parts from the storage bins, to count them ond pick out all the
Rootes items. This exercise occupied a team of 12 persons over a
period of six weecks. &5 part of the procedure the parts had to be
identified and tagged, and the countine of the total of each item.

Lists were prepared of the individual itcms, the quantity was

recorded, and a box numbercd assisned, nfter this, that list was
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taken to the cardex, indivicdual cards invelved were extracted,
put in numerical seguence, osnd from this the landed cost of cach
item was noted and extended to the tobtal item by item and case by
casCe

At the meeting of the 16th September, 1969, Mr., Clarke
also sald that he told Mr, Adamson that an obsolesence check hod
been carried out and this showed the value ot landed cost of those
parts which had not moved for twelve monthse BExhibit 2, a list of
such parts in stock that had not moved in sales for one year, had
previously been prepareds There was o discussion of whether the
twelve months' test ofobsolencence was not too severe, compared
with the test of five yeors which Mr. Adamson sugpested was a more
suitable test.

On the following day, Mr, idamson, according to Mre. Clarke's
evidence, dictated an offcr to buy not more than six months!
supply of parts which had not moved in the last twelve months.

Mr., Clarke described this as being no more than an expression of
intention, znd this whole offer was conditicned upon the signature
by Robinson's of z special form of relense satisfactory to Chrysler,
Tentative it wos, congidering that Mr. sdamson was unable to say
what the contents of the rclecase would be, In his evidence,

Mr, Clarkec compared this offer with o~ much better controct which

the plaintiff had. "We had had an undertaking to take our parts

and stock and I did not see that the order just ocutlined had come
near te that." His view was that Mr. sdamsen was picking and
choosing. "Our arrangement with Chrysler in Jamaica nover said
anything about only six menths's supply on any one item." I was

not told whether this thinking was conveyed to Mr. Adamson. But
when he was cross-—examined by Mre Moirhead, Mr. Clarke further state:!
categorically that the damson offer was different from the Imus
Assurances. Mr, Clarke could not recall having mentioned it to

Mr, idamson,on either the 16th or 17th September, 1969,
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Mr, Muirhcad indefatigably pressed the non-mention of the

Imus gssurance during these meetings as showing that the parties

treated it a2s if it never existed, He undorscoredthis submission
by the fact that Ixhihit 2 had nothing to de with th: Imus
Assurancee Mra.a Clivke did agree tht this list wos tetally
unconnected with, and totslly irrelevant to, the Inus lssurances
It should not be forgotten thot Lxhibit 2 listed whaot iz known in
the trade as "parts ageing”, 2nd was the subject of discussion at
the meetings althouph Mr. Clarke could not recall whether it was
expressly prepared for the mectinge He said the list hod been
prepared d&n compliance with the reguest of Mr. sdomson for
co~operation by the plaintiff.

From ~ll the circumstnnccs,'it was urged for the defendent
that clearly the plaintiff never ot sny time cendeavoured, attempted
or purported to act in a manner tc show thnt they -ccepted or ever
recognised the continuance of the Imus ..ssuresnce, ¥With resgpect, it
does scem to me that that contention is to aveild the impact of the
cvidence by Mr. Clarke that "Mre /damson had teld us in previous
meetings thot he had been in touch with Motor Sales and Service
about taking the partse. The indication about parts movement indicated
the quality of our stouck and it was only reasonable in my opinion
that we should make the information available.!' There is also the
reminder not only of the endquiry regarding the obsclescence check,
which I have already mentioned, but alsc the request for =
definiticon of the phrases'normal supply' ond Ycurrent parts.” To
this enquiry, Mr, /idamson replicd in respect of the first six
months' supply as shown by the cardex systems. In respect of the
second, parts listed on the Master Price List.

I am of the opinion that all this discussion took place
at a time when the plaintiff had already performed the acts which
the defendant had cncouraged it to perform. Let it be recognised
and accepted as I do, that the offer was different from the

Imus assurance, and in fact when thnt assuronce was given, it was
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given without any qualification ns to nge of stock, but would
certainly derive its full force and effect from the customsry
validity and applicability of the Master Price List. This
conclusion ig underlined by the ovidence of Mr. Imus when he
stated that when he gove his agsurance in 1969, "it concerned
those parts which were cn the Master Price List for 1969cesecoe
My assurance covered new ports which were on the Master Price
List for 1969..... My assurance covered new parts which would
be repurchased under the terms of the contract." If the terms
of the affirmation by letter of May &, 19969, mean anything,
monifestly, the explanation by Mr, Imus of what his assurance
embraced and, appearing to gnalify the relevance of the Master
Price List for 1969, is at variznce with that letter, and that
gualification is of the same nature as the attempt by

Mr. Ldamson to make what I categorisce as & new offer, oblivious
of the Imus assurance. Surely, the discussion in September 1969,
can reasonably be regarded as a continuntion of the discussion

in July 1969, which themselves did not ncgate or even modify the
relationship of the parties reculting from the transaction on the
28th January, 1969, 4s I huve already scid, the evidence
conclusively disclosesthat the plaintiff did order the parts in
pursuance of the reliance on the promise by Mr., Imus. In passing,
I make the comment that not having heard any evidence from

Mr. Adamson regarding these conversations I have had no recourse
but to accept the evidence of Mr, Clarke as the true account
thereof,

The meetings of the 16th and 17th September, 1969, were
followed by a letter from the defendant bhoaring date 24th September,
1969, confirming the offer mnde in the conversations with
Mr., Adamsons Mre. Henriques argued that the terms of this letter
arc totally inconsistent with an ception under Clause 3%2(C) of

the Aupust Lgreement having been excorcised on the 28th January,

1969, and confirmed on the 8th May, 1969, He guestioned whether,



It will be remembered that in that case in the course of a voyage
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if as contended, tho option had been exercisced in January 196G,
it was really necessary after a notice of termination had been
served to write in September 1969, He essoyed that all that
needed to have hecn done, the option hoving been exercised, was
for delivery by the plaintiff and payment by the defendante It
cannot be gainsaid that to test these ohservations due ropard must
be paid to the declaration by Mre Imus that he intended to bind
Chrysler by his assurance, Then too there is nothing in the
evidence to show that the letter of the 24%th September 1969,

was intended a change of dircction from the position of

January 1969, underscored by the letter of 8th May, 1969, and why,

if in fact, Chrysler had changed their attitude. It is
inconceivable that the letter over tho signoture of Norman L, Gray
for Chrysler International S,i. did not reccive the imprimatur

of Mr, Imus, yet he was ncver asked about 4ts rcelationship to his
assurance, In other words, the defendant hos put forward this
letter to prove that there wes no scttled contract up to then and,
therefore, the plaintiff cannot succeed. Certainly, the presence
of Mr. Imus invited such =n enguiry which might very well have
resgulted in my ready acceptance of the arpuncents on behalf of the
defendant on this aspect of the case.

But Mr. Muirhead argucd that the ordering of the parts
was in performance of the obligations of the plaintiffs. This
cannot in law amount to comnsideration, and therefore they have
provided no congideration for the assurance upon which they seek
to relye This is because of the principle that performance of an
act which one is legally bound to perform does not constitute
consideration., This is the principle laid down by Lord Ellenborough

in $tilk v. Myrick (1818) 2 Camp. Re 317, 170 E.R. 1168, N. P.

E

some of the scamen deserted, ond the captain of the ship not
being able to find others te supply their place, promised to

divide the wages which weuld have become duc te them among the



remainder of the crew. Tt wos held that thie rromise was void
for want of consideration, because the plaintiff had promiscd to

perform and did perform en existin: duty by tho subsisting

Yy

L

contracts On the other hand, *there is the cose of Hortley and

ponsonby /18577 7 ® & B 8723 26 LJLB, 3273 119 B.R. 1471, 4
vessel, in consequence of the descrtion »f some of the scamen,
was lcft short of hands in harbour helore the voyage was
completeds The master, to induce the remaining seamen to perform
the rest of the voyage, promised to pay them a sum of money in
addition to their wages. They accordingly performed the rest of
the voyage with the diminished nunber of hendse. On an action by
cne of the scamen against the master for the sum promised, the
jury found that he made the agrecement without ceoerciocn, for the
best interest of the owners, that he coculd not have obtained
additional hands at a reoasonable price, and that it was unreasonable
for so-large a ship to proceed on the cempletion of the veyage
with the diminished number of hands, It was held on this finding,

which the court undcrsteod to mean it wns unsafe so to proceed,

2]

=

that the plaintiff was cntitled to recover as the seamen were
not bound by their originsl contract of service, to proceed with
the diminished number of hands; nnd thoir undertaking to do so
was therefore a geod consideration for the master's promise,
Pollock on Contract (12th e¢dition by P, H, Winfield at p. 143)
cites this case as an authority to illustrate the proposition
that
" the doing or undertaking of any thing beyond
what cne is already bound to do, though of
same kind and in the same transaction may he
a good censideration.”
In Cheshire znd Fifoot - The Law of Contract (4th cdition)

at pe 774 the learned authors explsin Stilk ve., Myrick as a case

where the plaintiff was bound by an existing contractual duty to

the defendant in that -

7
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"the crew were olready bound by thedir contract
to meet the normnl cmceroencies of tho veyage,
and were dedny no more thon their duty in
working the ship home., Had they exceeded their

duty, or if the course of cvents hy making the

ship unseaworthy hn relieve them from perfaormance,
the case woeuld have been different,'

This wns the distincticn from Hartley vs, iFolgonby. In the last

narmed case -

"the shortage of labour was so sreat as to make the
further prosccution of the voyage exceptionally
hazardous, =snd, by discharming the surviving
members of the crew from their oripginal obligation,
left them frece to enter intc a new contract,.®

One only has to read the digest of cases set out in the English
and Empire Digest, Volume 42, Shipping and Navigaticn, Pt. VII
sub=section 7 ~ Extra Remuncration paragraphs hs53 o 4579 to

understand the distincticn and also the peculiar origin of the

rule in Stilk vs, Myrick, What should not be overlccked is that

the decision in Harris vs. Yatson (1971) Peake 72, the predecessor

of Stilk vs. Myrick, held that seamcn are nolb entitled to claim
extra wages in respect of services rendered in the ccurse of the
periccd of enpgagement, even though the master has agreed to pay

them, was based on public policy. But in Stilk vs. Myrick, the

decisgion was rested on the ground that it was veid for want of
consideration, I am of the vicw thot the peculiar origin of the
rule, that is, the conclusiveness of the articles precluding any
extra remuneration, was for the protection and preservation of
maritime ccmmerce. This should notbe lost sight of. Lord Kenyon
thus stated the principle of public policy:
" For if sailors were in all events to have their
woges, and in times of danger entitled to
insist on an extra chorge on such a promise as this
they would in many casecs suffer a ship to sink
unless the captain would pay any cxtravagant demand
they might think proper to makes "
Implicit in these remarks is the rejection of any attitude
which suggests coercion by the seaman of the master to pay the seaman

higher wages than those agreed in the articles. When

Lord Zllenborough decided 8tilk vs, Myrick he approved the

decision of Harris vs, Uatson. 4s I have already peinted out, he




Ls,
hased this decision not on the ground of public policy, but on the
ground of -

" There was no consideraticn for the ulterior jpay
promised to the mariners who remained on the ship.
Before they sailed from London they had undertsken
to do ©ll that they cculd under a2ll the encrsencles
S of the voyages. They had sold zll their services
L, till the voyage should be comploeted, W
It was immaterial whethor the contract for extra waZes in

consideration of the seaman doing more than his ordinary share in

navigating the ship was made during the Voyage (Harris v. Watson),

or was made on shore and the cxtra work was occasioned by the
desertion of part of the crewe. In this view Lord Ellenborousgh
opined that -
" tees dosertion of & nart of the crew is to be con-
(‘\> sidered an cmergency cf the voyage as much as their
- death, and thos¢ who remain arce bound by the terms
of their original contract tc cxert themselves to the
utmost to bring the ship in safety to their destined
port. "
Lord Ellenborough distinguished desertion of part of the
crew from the situation -
" 7f they had been at liberty to quit the vessel at
Cronstadt the case wculd have been quite different or
if the captain had capriciously discharged the two men
who were wantinpg, the others might not have been
compellable to take the whole duty upon themselves,
o and their agreeing to do so might have been sufficient
( ¥ consideration for the promise of an advance of wages."
By these words Lord Tllenborough would appear to have
compared a situation where the contract in the articles remained
unabridged by any occurrence which is the inherent incidence of
the contract of service by a scaman, with the opposite situation

in which the seaman performs some service beyond the scope of the

original contract, In 1785, the case of Yates v. Hall (1785)

1 T,Re 733 99 EeR. 979 was decided, ©Put shortly, the decision was
(\// that a promise by a captain of s ahip on behalf of his owners,
when the ship was captured te pay nonthly wases to one of the

sailors, in order to induce him to become a hostage, is binding on

the owners although they abandon the ship and cargo. One is tempted

to wonder at this decision since tha obvious illegality at




he,
the basis of the agreement between the master and the seaman would
seem ilpso facto to hrnve vitianted the agrecment to pay the wages.

g

Notwithstanding this, T should mention another case Harris v, Carter

(1854) 3 maRr 559; 118 #,12, 1251, in which Lord Campbell considered
the following foctse Plaintiff e sailor, sipned articles fer a
veyage to Melbourne and boack. When the ship arrived ot Melbourne
several of the crew deserted. The coptoin, to induce the rest to
remain, signed fresh articles with the plaintiff =nd others 2t the
rate of £6 per month for the home voyage. when the vessel arrived
home, the plaintiff sued the ship owner for work and labour. At
the trial on the claim for the full amount including that under the
fresh articles there was some cevidence that at Melbourne the
captain had consented to the discharpge of some ¢f the crew. The
judpe asked the jury if the plaintiff himself had been discharged
before entering into the fresh articles. On their answering that
he had not, the judge directed o non-suite Lord Campbell on a

motion for a new trial held that the non-suit was right. There

[

was no evidence of ony circumstances to free the plaintiff from his

original contract, so as tco enable him to rive consideration for the
fresh promise to him, or to authorisc the captain to bind the owner

by such a contract. Lord Campbell did not accept the submission of
counsel for the plaintiff thot when the master had at Melbourne

consented to the discharge of some of the crew, he had thereby improperly
increased the labours of the plaintiff and those who remained, and

did their dutye This they had contended would form a consideration

for the fresh promise. Sald Lord Campbell at page 561 (1252) -

" Had the plaintiff heen relieved from the
obligation which he had contracted towards the
shipowners, he¢ might have centered into a fresh
contract, and under the circumstances the
captain might have had authority to bind the
cwners by entering into a fresh agreement cn
their behalf with him. Had there been for
instance an entire change of the voyage it
might have been so. But here there were no
circumstances of thst kind. The voyapge
remailned the same voyage for which the man
had shipped, "




s

l+’7 .

The lesrned judze also expressed his agreement with
Lord Ellenborough's -

" 4.. discarding the ground of public policy on
which Lord Kenyon reliced in Harris ve Watson,
for I think it wouwld be wost mischievous to
commerce if it were supposed thot captains had

( ! power under such circumstances to bind their
. owners by a promise to oay more than was agrecd
for. "

I return to the report of Hartley v. Ponsonby (supra)

decided in 1857, the judgments in which analyse that the factual
framework was correctly outlined by the Jjury's verdict,

Lord Campbell is reported at page 1373 to have said that since
that finding was that it was dangerous to 1life for the ship to go
to sea with so few hands -

kvf " Tt was not incumbent on the plaintiff to perform
the work, and he was in the condition of a frecman.
Therc was therefore a consideration for the
contract, and the captain made it without coercion.
This was therefore a voluntary agreement upon
sufficient consideration. This decision will not
conflict with any former decision. "

In the words of Coleridge Je. -

% T am of the same opinion =«nd for the same reason
I undercstand the finding of the jury to be that
the ship was unscawcrthy, and thet, owing to the
excessive labeour which would e impcoeed, it was
not recasonable to requirce the marines to go to

( ! sea if they were not Lound to go, they were free

e to make a new contract; and the Master was

justified in hiring them on the best termse It
maybe thnt the plaintiff took advantage of his
position to make a hard bargain, but there was
no duress. "

The view of Raorle J. was conscnant althoupgh he -
",.s was deeply impressed with the consequence of

not helding the plaintiff to perform his original
engagementa"

Yhether it was so dangerous for the seaman to continue the Journey
(l-k and 1ts unreasonableness was a question for the jury.
)
In his concurring opinion Crompton J. accepted the jury's

verdict that the arrangement between Master and Seaman was & free

bargaine. From the point of view of public policy he said:

e



48,

M eveoe 1t would te very danpercus te lay lewn that
under all the circumstonces and ¢t zny risk to
life seamen are Lound to procecd on a VOYRZE eeo
Yhere from a ship being short handed, it weuld be
unsafe for the seaman to po te sea, they becone
free to moke ony new contract that they likel. "

If I have appearced to dwell toc long on the particulars
of the aforementionced cases, I plead the necessity to observe upon

them that the rule in Stilk v. Myrick is not an inflexible rule,

That is to say, as is shown by the case of Hartley znd Ponsonby and

the dicta from the other cited cases. .t this early stage, the rule
was never applied wherce in the circumstances of the particular
case it can be ascertained that althcugh the original factual
situation subsists yet there has becn a change of c¢mphasis because
of an emergency. Furthermore, provided there is no coercion (overt
or implied) by the ocne party of the other in this contingency,
indicating that the one is taking advantage of the other, whereby the
person allepedly disadvantaged has to concede, or accecde to, the
extravagant demands of the other, the rule was never applied,
Bspecially 1if the perties, because of the contingency, are to all
intents and purposes free to make the best contract they could, It
is a gquestion of fact.

A modern illustration of the strict application of the

rule in Stilk v. Myrick is the case of Crocks Island Shipping Co.

Ltd. v. Colson Builders Ltd. /19757 1 N.Z.L.R. 422. The rule was

there applied in all its full force and c¢ffects The defendant
builders made a contract with the plaintiff for the shipment of
material needed by the defendant to fulfil a contract. Freight was
to be paid at a certain rates, but when the plaintiff company
realised that loading would take longer than the twenty-four hours
allowed for by it, it refused to hold hack the ship to enable
loading to be completed unless the defendant arrecd to pay the
extra ;754,00 for cevery hourts delay. Because the materials were

necded to start tho building, the defendant npreed to the plaintiff's
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demande It was held that there was ne censideration for the
defendnnt's promise. To hold othorwisc would deny o contracting
party nprotection from extortion especially where performnnce is
of special impertance to hime Muhon, J. found that controry to
the evidence of the plaintiff there was no pre-existing agreement
to pay an additional sum in addition to froight by way of

compensation for the vessel staying o further day et the port of

loading, It is noteworthy that the learned judge analysed the
contract of affreightment as reguiring the plaintiff to load at
Portland a guantity of cement and an unspecified tonnage of other
materials and plante. Freight for such cargo was assessable and
payable at the schedule rates. Therefore, under the contract -

" The extra cargo also produca? further freight, and
whatcver may have been the cxpected time of performance
of the plaintiff's obligation to load the carge at
Portland, the only congideration payable to it for
loading cargo at Portland and its subsequent
carriage was tho payment of the scheduled freight by
the defendant. ilhen the plaintiff demanded payment
over and above the scheduled freizht for the loading
and carriapge of the carge, it was thereby requiring
from the defendant an affirmative contractual promise
for which the consideration was the performance of
the obligation which the plaintiff was alrcady
contractually bound to perform,

"In my view, there was no consideration for
the defendant's promise seee  (ide pe 434)

He turned attention to the =

" The principle /Es/ stated succinctly in Williston
on Contracts (3rd ed.), Vol. 1, p. 532, where the
learned author refers to the subseguent sncillary
promise as the 'second agreement'! and says:
'On principle, the second agreement is invalid for
the performance by the recalcitrant contractor is
no legal bencefit to the promisec since he was
already e¢ntitled to have the work done.' [flso cited
in Jillistonis Lingenfelder v. Voinwright Brewery Co.
18 S OI9 In which the Tollowing pasoage appears in the
judgyment of the Court:
'What we hold is that when a party merely does
what he has already obligated himself to do,
he cannot demand an additional compensation
therefor, and although by taking advantage
of the necessities of his adversary, he obtains
a promise for more, the law will regard it as
nudum pactum and will not lend its process to
aild in the wrong (ibid 848),v n




~

M

264

50,
This being the rationale of the rule, the contrary

opinion of Denning, L.J., in WYard v. Bayham ZI95§7 3 ;11 B.Re. 318,

is of interest, This was a case where the father of an illegitimate
child gave an under-taking to the mother of the child tc pay her for
maintaining the child, It was a condition that the child should be
well looked after and happy. This condition was fulfilled by the
mother, In an action brought by her for £1 a week based on the
father's undertaking, the argument centred around the point that
there was no consideration for the promise by the father to pay £1

a week, because when she looked After the child, the mother was only
doing that which she was legally bound to do, and that is no
consideration in law. [lthough Denning, L.J., approached the case

on the footing that in looking after the child the mother is only

" doing what she is legally bound to do, nevertheless, he said -

" Fven so, I think that there was sufficient consideration
to support the promise, I have always thought a
promise to perform an existing duty, or the performance
of it, shculd be regarded ac good consideration,
because it is a benefit to the peorson to whom it is
givene. Take this very case, It is as much a benefit
for the father to have the child looked after by the
mother as by a neighbour. If he gets the benefit for
which he stipulated he ought to honour his promise,
and he ought not to avoid it 'y saying that the
mother was herself under a duty to maintain the
Child LY "

Mr, Muirhead pointed out that this cxpression of opinion
is not a correct statement of the law, In fact, he said, the majority
decision of Morris and Parker, L,JJ., as to the issue of
consideration arising out of the letter from the father is
preferable to the minority decision of Denning, L.J., when it is
realised that that is based on the fact that the wife assumed her
legal responsibilitics after the child had been under the father's
aegis for some time,

It is clear that Morris and Parker, L.JJ., found
consideration to be in the condition which the father imposed and

which went beyond the mothert!s dutye. That view is amply summarised

in the judgment of Morris,; L.J.s at pe 320 letters D - E :

by
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" It seems to me, thercfore, that the father was
saying, in effect: Irrespective of what may be the
strict legal position, whot T am asking you is
that you shall prove that the child will be
well looked after and be happy, and also that you
must agree that the child is to Le allowed to
decide for herself whether or not she wishes
to come and live with you. If those counditions
were fulfilled the father was agreeable to pay.
On these terms, which in fact became operative,
the father agreed to pay £1 a weeke. In my
judgment there was ample consideration there
to be found for this promise, which I think
was binding,"

Here, Morris, L.J., had been considering the submission
that there was 2 duty on the mother to support the child, that no
affliation procceedings were in prospect or were contemplated, and
that the effect of the arrangement that followed the letter, was
that the father was merely agreeing to pay a hounty to the mother.
T do not think that this is any different from the earlier view of
Denning, L.J.y at ps 319 at letter I:

" I regard the father's promise in this case as
what is sometimes czlled n unilateral contract,
a promise in return for the mother's locking
after the child. Once the mother embsrked on
the task of lecoking after the child, there was
a binding contract. 8o long as she looked
after the child, she would be entitled to £1 a
weeks "

The unanimous affirming of the decision of the County
Court Judge by the Court of ippeal did not therefore in fact turn

on the principle of the decision in Stilk ve Myrick, but on the

substantial ground of the binding naturc¢ of the promise by the
husband once the mother decided to carry out the stated aonditious.
Strikingly s Denning and Morris, L.JJ., in the long run, effectively
side-stepped the principle, the mother being already legally

bound, It was approached from the respective viewpoings thnt

"even so" (per Demning, L.J.), and "Irrcspective of what may be

the strict legal position” (per Morris, L.J.), and by regarding

the mechanism of the facts of the relationship as disclosed by the
stated contract.

Denning, L.J., repeated his views in Williams v, Williams

o

ZT9527 1 i1l EeRe 305, where the matter in contention was an agree-

e

miQ)E,
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ment between a hushand and his wife, who was in desertion, that
she would maintain herself and indemnify the husband asainst debts
incurred by her, zndnot to pledge his credit. The decision wns

that there was consideration for the husband's promise to pay her
maintenance, since, ~lthcouzh she was in Jesertion at the date of

the agrecement, yet she might offer to return and thus her right to
maintenance was not forfeited but merely suspended by her desertion.

Lecordingly, the husband would have to honour his promise. At

Pe 507 letters /i - Cy Denning, L.J,, sald this:

o]

" Now, I agrce that in promising to maintain
herself whilst she was in desertion, the wife
was only promisings to do that which she was
already bLound to do. Nevertheless, a promise
to perform an existing duty is, I think
sufficient cecnsideration tc suppert a promise,
sc¢ leng as there is nothing in the transaction
which is contrary to the public interest, "

He elaborated on this view in the following way:

" Suppose that this sgreement had never been made,
and the wife had made no promise tc malntian
herself and did not do so, she might then have
sought and received public assistance cor have
pledged her husband's credit with tradesmen, in
which case the Nationol Assistance Board might

summoned him before the mngistrates, or the
tradesman mipht have sued him in the county
court. It is true that he would hzve had an
answer to these claims because she was in
desertion but nevertheless he would be put to
all the trouble, worry and expense of defending
himself against them. By paying her 30s o week
and taking the promise from her, that she will
maintain herself =mnd will not pledge his credit,
he has an added safeguard to protect himself
from 21l its worry, trouble and expense, That is
& benefit to him which is good consideration
for his promise to pay maintenance. That was
the view which appealed to the county court
judge, and I must say it appeals to me also., "

Neither Hodson, L,.,J., nor Morris, L.J., were disposed

t

)

found their concurring opiniong that the husband's agreement to
pay maintenance was enforccable and therefore he was liable to pay
the arrears, on that reasoning by Denning, L.J, Instcad, they
agreed with the alternative ground propounded by Denning, L.J.,
that the desertion by the wife did not destroy her right to be

maintained but only suspended it, considering that if she genuinely

2 bl
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offered to return, and the offer was rejected by her husband she

could proceed xinst hir for maintenance.

Relating both these casecs to the qguestion of consideration,
it cannot be overlocked that the Court in cach case did neot desl

frontally with the princizle of 8tilk v, Myrick but established their

judgment on other grounds for consideration. TLike in Hartley v,

Ponsonby the judges found an act over and albove the lepral duty. As
t A

Mr. Henriques pointed out, what is gignificant is that in every

situation, subseguent to Stilk v. Myrick, the courts have found =

ground to avoild the cuon.neavances of Stilk ve Myrick, And this is

especially so in commercizli transactionse. This was the course adopted

by Mccatta Je in North Qcean Shipping Coe. Lide ve Hyundail Construction

Co. Ltd. and fnother the itlantic Baron /19787 3 k1l E.R. 1170, The
case was concerned with a contract to build o ship. Builders

Contracted to open & letter of credit as security for repayment of
instalments of price if they faoiled to perform the contract. The
currency - the United States dollar-of the contract was devalued after
the payment of the first of five instalments of the price for building
the ship. The builders thereupon claimed an increased price to cover
the devaluation. The owners agreed to pay the increased price, the
bullders assuring the owners upon request that they would increase

the letter of credit to correspond with the increased price. The

owners pald the rcecmaining four instalments plus the additional ten
percent on each instalment without pretestes They clso accepted delivery
of the ship without protest, although at one stage of the negotiations
over the increased price they did not intend to affirm the agreement to
pay the incrcased price. There was no evidence that if the owners had
protested and withheld the final instalment, the builders would not have
delivered the shipe. In a claim by the owners to recover the excess

over the original purchase price, the guestion reised was whether the
promise by the builders to fulfil the existing contractual duty to build
the ship was good consideration, /Additionally, whether their promise

to increase the letter of credit was good consideration or was merely
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the fulfilment of an existing contractual duty.

Mocattu,y J., zccerding to the first hend note, held
that although the rule that a prouise by one party to o contract to
fulfil its existing contractual duty towards the other party did
not constitute good consideration was still good law, so that the
builders! original contractual duty to build the ship did not

constitute good consideration for the reecment to pay the price

increased by ten percent, the increase by the builders in the
amount of their letter of credit was sufficient consideration on
their part for the agreement since by agreeing to increase the
letter of credit they had undertaken an additional obligation, or
had rendered themselves liable to an increased detriment and were
not mere fulfilling their contractual duty.

It shcould be noted that his discussion of what he
compendiously called '"the rcturn letter of credit" led him, not
without some doubt, to conclude that there was consideration for
the new agreement, JImmediately before this, he had stated:

W T remain uncenvinced, however, that by merely
gsecuriny an increase in the instalments to be
paid for ten porcent the yard automatically
became oblined to increase the return letter
of credit pro tonto, snd were thercfore doing
no more than undertaking in this respect to
fulfil their existing contractuasl duty. I
think that here they were undertaoking an
additional obligation or rendering themselves
liable to a detriment. " (ppe 1176 letter J -
1177 letter ()

Since the conclusion of the arguments in this case, the

judpment of the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council in Pae On and

Others ve Lou Yun and Others /19797 3 211 EeRe 65 P,C,has come to
handa The plaintiffshad purchased shares in a company ¢f which
the defendants were majerity shareholders. It was a condition of
the written agreements relating thercto, that the plaintiffs
promised not to s¢ll the shares for a ycar, This restriction on the
sale was to be compensated for by the defendonts guaranteeing the
price of the shares. But the plaintiffs realised that by giving

the undertaking to postpone the sale of the shares they exposed



themselves to the risk that the price of shores misght £all below

the gwmaranteed vrice duwdng the period of postponement. Therefore,
by a subsidiary agreement, the defendasnts promised to indemnify the
mlaintiffs apainst the fall of the price of shares during the year
the sale was restricteds The cuestions raised on the evidence were
whether the antecedent promise not to sell the shores was sufficient
consideration for the subsequent promise of indemnity, and whether
the consideration for the subscquent promisce of indemnity was
invalidated on the ground of public policy if the promise of
indemnity was secured Ly a threat to repudiate the existing contract
or by abuse of a dominant bargaining pover. Truc, it is that this
case was concerned with the promise to perform or the performance of

a pre-~existing contractual cbligation to a third party, which it

e

reiterated can be valid consideration: see New Zealand Shipping Co

Ltd, ve fe M, Satterthwaite & Co. Ltd. /19747 1 411 E.R. 1015. Lord
Scarman in delivering the judgment of the bozrd neted that:

" Counsel for the defendonts submits that the
considerstion is illegnl as being against
public policy. He submits that to secure
a party's premise by a threst of repudiation
of 2 pre-existing contractunl obligation owed
to ancther, can Le, =2nd in the circumstances
of this cose was, an abuse of the dominant
bargaining position and so contrary to public
policy. This, he submits, is so even though
econontic durcss cannot he proved. "

(pe 70 at letter Q)

Llthoupgh this submission had found fovour with the majority
of the Court of .[ppeal of Hongkong, their Lordships thought this
was misconceived. There followed adiscussion of Wthe old seaman',

ceses of Harris ve Y'ntson and Stilk v, Myrick upen which reliance

had becn placed, It is not inappropriate to comment that this
reliance was an endeavour to apply these cases to a situation of a

duty imposed by contract with a third party. The comments of

N

Lord Scarman are as follows at p. 70 letter I to page 77 letter S:
" Tn the seaman cases there were only two
parties, the seaman and the captain
(representing the owner), In Harris v. Viatson
the captain during the voyape, for which the
plaintiff had contracted to serve as o ccaman,

20
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U opromised hinm five guincas aver and above his

common wages if he uld perform some extra
work, Lord Kenyon thought that if the

: claim to e paid the five suineos
was rrorted tit weould materially affect
the nnvigation of the Kingde He feared Lhe
prospect of senmen in times of danger
ingistin,: ton an extroe charse on such a
promisc, ! and nonsuitcedl the plaintiff., In
Stilk v, Myrick, Lord Bllenboreugh nlso non-
suited the scamn fccording to the report
in Camptell (2 Canp 317) he sald:

tT think Horris ve. Watson was rightly
decided but T dcoulit whother the ground
of public policy, upon which Lord Kenyon
is stated to have preoceeded, be the true
principle on which the decision is to be
supported, Here I say the asreenment is

void for want of consideration.!

Espinassc, who appeared zs jurnior counsel for
the unsuccessful plaintiff in the case, reports
the case somewhat differcntly. He reports
(1809) 6 Tsp. 129 at p. 130) Lora Ellenborough
as saying that '... he recognised the principle
of the case of Horris ve Watscn as founded on
just and proper policy.!' Put the report
continues: 'When the defendant /sic - but
surely the plaintiff is meant?/ entered on
board the ship, he stipulated to do all the
work his situation called upon him to do.!
These cases, explicable as they are on the
basis of absence of fresh consideration for

the captain's promise are an unsure foundation
for a rule of pullic policy invalidating
contracts where, save for the rule, therc

would he valid consideraticon. "

The judgment of the board jocs on to consider cases

"wherc a pre-cxisting duty imposed by law is alleged to be valid

consideration for a promise:

L]

Onc¢ finds casesg in which public policy has been
held to invalidate the consideration o [, promise
to pay a sheriff in coasideration of his
performing his lezsl duty, = promise to pay

for discherge from illeral arrest, are to be
found in the Looks as promiges which the law

will not enforce. Yet such cases are also
explicable on the ground that a person who
promises to perform, or performs a duty imposed
by law provides no consideration. In cases

where the discharge of a duty imposed by law has
been treated as valuable censideration, the
courts have usually (Lut not invariably) found an
act over and abcve, but conasistent with, the

duty imposcd by law: sce Williams v, Williams
/19577 1 :11 B.R. 305, /195771 1.L.R. 108. It
must be conceded that different judges have
adopted differing approaches to such cases:
contrast far exawmple, Denning, L.J. with the

view of the majority in williams ve Williamse. "

A 70
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|
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The Judgment discusses o situstion Ywhere the proe-

existing obligation is o controctual duty owed to o third party"®

wiere ‘"some other srcund of public

clicy must be relicd on to

i
invalidate the censideration (if ctherwise lesal)e The defendants

had submitted that the ground con be extortion by the abuse of a

iominant position to throeaten the renudiation of a contractual
obligntion, Interestingly, the judrment adverts to this application
of public policy which has been developed in the american cases:

" Beginning with the general rule that neither the
perfermance of a duty anor the promise to render a
performance already reguired hy duty is a
sufficient consideration the courts have
(according to Corbin on Contracts (1963) vVel. IX
Che 7, 5171) advanced to the view that tthe
mor.l and cceonomic elements in any case that
inveolves the rule should be weighed by the court,
and that the fuct of preexisting legal duty
should not be itself decisivee! "

As regards the relevance of public policy where the
question is "whether, in a case where duress is not established,
public policy may nevertheless invalidate the consideration if there
his been a threat to repwliate o preexisting contractual obligantion or
an unfair usc of a dominating bLeoreaining poesitiony™ the Reard uttered
the significant remorks that -

" Where businesswmen are negotiating at arm's
length it is unnecessory for the achievement
of justice, and unhelpful in the development
of the law, to invoke such a rule of public
policys It would also create sncemaly. It is
unnecessary becouse justice reguires that men
who have nepgotiated at arm's length be held
to their barpgains unless it can be shown that
the consent was vitiated by fraud, mistake or
duresce. If o promise is induced by coercion
of o man's will, the doctrine of duress suffices
to do justice. The party coerced, if he
chooses and acts in time, can avoid the contracte.
If there is no coercion, therc can be no reason
for aveiding the contract where there is shown
to be o real congideration which is otherwise
legale " (pp 77 letter pp - 78 letter a)

But note that these remarks were made in a case which had to
consider what constitutes duress in a commercial contract -
"commercial pressure is not encugh there must be present some factor

which could in law be recarded as o coercion of his will so as to
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58.
vitiate his conscnt." (pe 78 at letter f and pe. 79 letters d - e)
"It must be shown that the payment made or the contract entered into

was not a voluntary act." Note nlso thot North Occan Shipping Co.

Ltde ve Hyundal Construction Co. Ltd. was itself a case of duress,

Nevertheless, the court found a ground on which to c¢vade the rule

~n

of no consideration wher> there is a promisc to perform or there has
been the performance of a pre-existing contractual duty.

In the instant case, there was no duress. Indeed, the
August Agreement and the Imus Assurance were the cutcome of negotiations
vetween the Chrysler Group, onc¢ of the foremost dynamic automobile
organisations in the world and which ranks as the fifth largcest
industrial concern in the world (sec circular dated 22nd July, 1968),
and H, ©, Robinson and Co., Ltd - a franchise holder from that giant
organisation which at all times was fighting to maintain its
commercial viability by endeavouring to retain the franchise, the
lifeblood of Robinsontss The circumstances in this case are not even

said
5lightly similar to those of Stilk vy Myrick when it can be/firstly,

there must have been the nced to protect the essentials of the
original contract secing that it was absolutely necessary that the
ship should sail without risk or danger, which would delay or abort
the journey. That decision was to obvinte improper pressure being
brought to bear on the Master, At pe 67 of Treitel on Contract
(4th ed,) the lcarned author rounds off his discussion under the
rubric "Duty imposed by contract with promisor' as followg:

" The rule that performance of an existing duty
is no consideration sometimes serves the useful
purpose of protecting one contracting party from
extortion by the other. Put in other cases the
demand for extra pey may be perfectly
reasonable, €e5ey 1f a contractor who has apreed
to do excavating work unexpectedly strikes hard
rock. The foct that some promises of this kind
may be obtained by extortion is no ground for
invalidating them all. It would be better if the
' validity of these prounises depended not on the
doctrine of consideration, but on the question
whether the promiseehsd taken on considerable
advantage of the promisor. " (sec also Halsbury's
Laws of BEngland, Vole 9 (4th ed.) at p. 201,
para. 520)

To the earlier gquoted words of Tord Scarmsn of how the

o 18
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courts should zpprozch the no
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gtictions wmd contracts of businessmon
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I would add this quotntion from the judgment of Lord wilboerforce

in geardon Smith Line v, Hansen Jangen Ltd. /19767 3 £11 T.R. 570,

§ H.L. at page 574% letterz ¢ - f:
(‘}
- " No contracts are made in o ¥Yucuum, there is alwnys
a settiay; in which they have to bLe placed. The
ature of whet is legitimate to have RN
usually describzd as the surrouniin: circumstnnces
hut this phrase is dmprocise, it con he illustrated
but hardly defined. In o commercial contract, it
is certainly right that the ccurt should know the
commercicl purpose of the contract =nd this in turn
presupposezs knowledge of the gunesis of the
transaction, the background, the context, the market
in which the parties zre operating.

Again, at pe 575 letters ¢ - £ 'he opined:

- " {fhat the court must do must be to vlace itself in
(\ ' thought in the same factusl matrix as thnt in which

the parties were esess /Qnd7 recopnise that in the
scarch for the rclevant b@CkgTuuhu, there may be
fucts, which form part of the circumstances in which
one or both may take wo particulsr interest, their
minds being addressed to or concentrated on other
facts so that if asked they would assert that they
did not have these facts in the forcfront of their
mind, but that will not prevent those facts from
forming part of on objective setting in which the
contract is to be construed, "

In giving effect to the ilutention of the partics in this
case, and looking at the substance and avt the form, I repeat that -
(vu W This is particulsrly the cose where there is evidence
that the parties have acted on the faith that certain
agreed terms constitute & contract between them, "
(Halsbury's Law of Ingland (4th ed.) Vol. 9, p. 151,
para. 269,)
On the noot point in this case, it may be helpful to dissect
the factual matrix to discover whether there is any consideration for

the Imus Assurance. According to Mr. Henriques, when "consideration™

is looked at 1t is not that the parties were operating under the

P August Agreement,because an unforeseen situation had occurred for
which the August Agreement contained no provision which could
accommodate the respective commorcianl objoctives of the parties thereto.
Mr. Imus did nct want to exercise his rights under the August
Apgreement, hecause 1t would not be advantageous to him, similarly,

the plaintiffe. 8o that o ncew agreement had to bhe arrived
I 2)

at to

&1
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60,
accommoedate both parties. This new agrecment he analysed, conferred
the following adventages on the defendant Chryslor:

The defendant company continued to sell parts ond the
plaintiff continued ordering parts, ng if they were not in danger
of losing the fronchise. Thaere woo ne disruption of business
despite the state of uncertainty as to the fate of the franchise
distributorships. This maintenance of the distributorship for Rootes
products in Jamaica, was during the period when the defendant was
moking up its mind in respect of the Jamaican market, and

conscquently, it provided time for the defendant to negotiate the

faal

est possible terms for itself with respect to the Rootes franchise
in Jomaica with the new distributors. In this regard, the under-
taking by the plaintiff tO0 continuc ordering spare parts, and in
foct, so ordering provided time for the defendant to decide which
of the two rival claimants should he hoard.

On the other hand, the followin; consideraticns bear on the
guestion whether the plaintiff suffered o detriment: Continuing to
purchase parts and to incur expense which must result in a financial
loss if the franchise was terminated. This meant continuing to
maintain a level of stock which ccoculd not have been disposed of
within the 60 days notice period of the August Agreement. This level
of stock was maintained at six or scven wmonths supply over and above
the fcour months supply which the defendant belatedly stated in the
Further and Better Particulars, was adequate for the Jamaica market,
The plaintiff furthermore continued to muintain and promote the
Rootes! products in Jamaica by spending time, effort and expense
thereon at a time when there was uncertainty as to the future of the
franchise and that they could stond to lose both financially and that
their time and effort would have brought no benefit to them
ultimatelys. Another detriment to the piaintiff was its continuing an
undertaking to run the risgk of sustaining severe financial loss,
rather than taking the reasonable commercinl decision of either

reducing the stocks to 60 days supply, or clusing downa

;;l \‘? ua



For his part, Mr. Muirhe
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61.

of

the plodntiff oo

over-ll oblicaticns under the fugust Agreement to

of service narts,

efficiontly and properly servicued.

of the

Imus Assurance

and

at the

date of termination Robinson's maintained their stock of parts at

their normel level of seven months!

Mre
contractually bound, an@éArthur's evidence disclosing that he had

continued to order parts

than what it was contractually obliged

had five months or six months supply of stock,

Mre. Muilrhead, thce evidence

of

0]

pare varts. He a
succeed on the pground that
contractually bound to do,
the time when the agrecmen
the first time there was

parts was in the Fuarther o

15

that in crder for the

it did

in thes

th

normal

at

5

it

over and

upplye.

to do,
according

VIS

above

to

what 1t was

Beins thus already

fashionh, he was doing no more

Whether the plaintiff

carrying an adequate stock

plaintiff to

the pleintiff must pgive consideration at

t e

nd

Vs

winz

four months supply was so stated.

argued from this that when the cvidence disclosed that

months for a
that four
replacing it under

this agreement, is

months operated on

T interpolate here

examination:

not

do

"noT
an

agree

that

four months,.

P

A

any definition of o
Better Particulars

Dut peculiarly, Mr.

enteraed intoe

of the

stock order to be filled, this would secem t

4 more ilmportant fact,

the mind of Mr.

cur months?
adeguate stock of service parts,.

Arthur

at the time

liec conceded that
gquate stock of service
Defence, when
Muirhead

it took four

o indicate

months stock was inadequate because of the difficulty in

according to

of the

adequate supply of service parts in Jnmaica to be

appropriately seven monthe,.

Under the

that nc other poeriod apsart from that of six or seven

assurances

the evidence pgiven by Mre Arthur under cross-

supply reyprescents
T consider an

distributorship, I did consider that seven menths!

supply of poarts was =
from intimate

formed

(NCES

juntes That opinion w
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" was the level of service narts stock I found in 19686,
and that was the level of stock I maintained until I
left in July 1969 .... I would disegree with Chrysler's

view that four monihs supply of parts is adegunte. v

It is from this that it was further argucd that since four
months! supply never operated oa the mind of Robinson's as likely to bho
adegquate it cannot affcct the issue of consideration, since they never
considercd nor were they ever advised that less than six to seven
months!' stock would or would hnave heen considered adequate. Undoubtedly,
is this so, because Robinson's cannct be considered te have assumed
increased detriment or additionzl oblipaticn, over and above what they
considered adequate under the provisions of the August fgreement,

The significance of this bLecomes clear upon consideration of Clause 26

of the August igreement, Contrzry to those previsicns the defendant
never communicated to the plaintiff what the defendant thought was an
adequate stock of spare partse This lack does not vitiate his argument,
said Mre. Muirhcad, becausce by mointaining the level of stocks which it
set for itself, the plaintiff was not doing anything mcre in consideratiocn
of the Imug ssurcnce, The upshot of this argument is to conclude that
no detriment has heen suffercd by Robinson's ond so no consideration
moves from the promises.

fdmittedly, the anslysis on each side has much to recommend it,
but after much thourht T am of the decided opinion that Mr. Henrigues!
examination of the factual matrix is well-groundoed, znd this, in vicw
of the previous comments and the conclusions to which I have arrived
not only on the facts but alsoc on the lawe So that I find that there
wag consideration for the Imus Assurance ond that the defendant is
therefore liaghle to the plainfiff for feilin: tc purchase the spare
ports which remained at the time of the termination of the contract.

By the Imus ,ssurance the parts to bhe purchased by the
defendant are current parts which by definition are related to the
Master Price List, the latest available issue of which was the 1971
Master Price List. It was commoaly apgresd that o part could remain

current for a number of years. I have ndtherto set out the evidence

& 16
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63-
on this point and it only now remains for m:z to state that I accept

without qualificaticn the cvidence of Mr. Yomlinson, and that of

Mre "ayne Eilchardson that

which they discovered in the

1971 Master Price List would hrove heen listed in the Master Price

List for 19CY, This, of ccursc, is subject to the knowledge that

there was no superscssion list sccompanying the available 1971

Master Price List, which would not have carried cny items which
s

had been supersoded.éiI understand it from Mr. Tomlinson, the

supersession kist is an integral part of the Master Price List, and

tould state an identical part as hefore, but with & new number.
Speaking categorically, and from his wide experience, Mr. Tomlinson
said:

"o, ... without looking at the Master Price List for

1969, I can say that the parts in 1971 Master
Price IList appeared in 1969 Master Price List.

I can commit myscelf thus on the ground that parts
are current, T believe thnt any number on kxhibit
5 appears in the Master Price List. "

Exhibit 5 was the packing note listing the Rootes parts
which were in stock in QOctobar, 1969, at the time of the termination
of the distributorship. As he explained, the procedure of the
exercise to discover this, Mr. Towlingon and his staff took the
list at rondom on a case basis, checked item by item apgainst the
1971 Master Price List and thereupen discovered thnt 91% of the
items checked still appenred in the 1471 Master Price List. The

. Ie)

remaining 9% which was not traced would sear on the Supersession

Liste In more concretc terms, out of a totnl of 10L cases of
parts, a sampling of 12 cases of varying quantities of linec items
per case was madey and after referring to the 1971 Master Price
List to determine whether or not those line items listed from the

s showed that

}_—l.

scction appeared on that Master Price List, the annlys
of o total of 1,464 line items from the 12 cases, 1,332 line itenms
appeared on the 1971 Mastcr Price List. So that, the course of
checking disclosed that the 91% referred to above was

representative of 9,777 Rootes ports which werc included in the



1969 Master Price List.

All this is amply sup.orted by the evidence of Mr. Arthur
when he testified "oi the stock which Robinson's had when
distributership terminnted 90% of it was still current in 1971."

In fact, he testified, at the moterial times, there was no obsolete
stock in 1969, and in my vicw censidering thot the distributorship
had been granted in 1966, there would not have been any likihood

of redundant stock in 1969,

Instructively, in the letter signed by Norman L. Gray for
Chrysler International Se.i. and dated September 24, 1969, the
defendant made an cffer to “repurchase or cause to be repurchased
all new Rootes metor vehicle parts and accessories in good and
saleable condition, presently in your inventory and/or shipped to
you by Rooctes Motors Limited on or before 24 October 1969, subject to
the following coﬁditions: only those Rootes parts nnd accesgories
25 abovementioned which hove shown movement during the 12-month
peried from 1 fugust 1968 to 31 July 1969 and which vepresent the
normal 6-month demand in Jamaicae will be repurchased, the undersigned

company having the ripht to inspect your inventory control and other

records we deem necesszary to verify said movement and demandd”
Apart from the fact thot this is decidely contrary to the unqualificed
terms of the Imus /ssurance, this new offer Jdefincs "a new part or
accessory' as a mart or accessory listed in the currcent Rootes Motors
Limited Master Price IListe I do not necd to recount in any
greater detail the cevidence regarding the description of the stock

at
as/the date of termination. Suffice it to say that I am satisfied

and

that in all the circutistances as placed before me/about which I have
given earnest consideration, I am satisfied th=at the procedure of
checking as explained by Mr. Tomlinson and Mr, Richardson, was
practical and recasonable, It wes efficscicus  despite the submission
by Mrs, Hudson-Phillips thot on the basis ~f the cevidence the

plaintiff had not proved that the parts Hr which it claimed payment

are the parts to which the Imus lssurance referred. T agree with
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her thoat it is incumbent on the plaintiff to prove th:t the ports
in respect of which it c¢laimed sre curroent purts within the accepted

meaning of the phrase in the trade. The accepted wmeaning of the

trade was given both by the witneases Tor the plaintiff snd the solo
witness for the defence.

Thegse bits of evidence inform thst the concurrence of

cpinion is not remorkable, sceing that it is by persons who have becn
long engaged in the automotive trade. There is nothing in the
evidence for the defendant apart from the letter of 24th September,
1969, from which I could say that the plaintiff and the defendant
through their representatives were ever ot logperheads over the
meaning of the term "cur. ent parts.? The letter underlined the
ambit of the term but sought to circumscribe it by the conditions
proposecd.

In fine, I reject the argument that the plaintiffhas not
proven the parts to be current partse I do not nccept that
Mr. Tomlinson and Mr. Richzrdson .nd Mr. /‘rthur scught to mislead
mc in their evidence on the rclevance of the Master Price List.

While T found Mre Imus a forthright witness in his approach to this

case = his restatement of the binding nature of his assurance is
in point - I was nevertheless not helped by any evidence or

arpument for the defendant by which I could be persuaded not to

find as a fact that Mr. Tomlinson and Mre Qichardson engaged
themselves and their staff in the checking and analysis which T
earlier recountcds There being no evidence to counter the results
of that exercise, I am led on the balance of probabilities to accopt
their evidence, and find as a fact that the geods, the subject
matter of the Imus Assuraonce, were properly identified ot the time
of termination and fell within the acceptotion of the term
"current part,”

It was the logical and natural ~utcome of the arguments for

the defendant that there vas no bresch concidering, inter alia, ihat

the goods = Ycurrent parts’ - vers never offerced to the defendonts



the zgents of the Jefendant - Mr, Adomso
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67.

n oand Mr, Hartman - at vari-uns

times nfter the service of the notice of termination made statements

of settled intention as regards the sort

<

of the parts, it is incomprehensible to

ingz, transfer and storing

me thoet 1t can be arguced thot

the narts were not offcered to them so that there was no refusnl which

would make the defendont lisblee Certai

parts ready for dclivery to theme That
cvidence regarding their conduct, which
as a clear acceptance

circumstancoséof the ascertainment and =
questione

Hercupon, I conclude that this
unascertained poods has to be dealt with
se 18 (5) (1) of the Sale of Goods .cte

" Where there is z contract for

or future goods by description
and in a deliverable state ar

wly, thcy knew that thasre werc
much is clear from the
I interpret in 21l the

vailability of the parts in

contract for tho sole of
according to the dictsantes of
That secticn suys -

the snle of Whascertained

s and goods of that description
¢ unconditionally appropriated

to the contract either by the seller with the assent

of tho

There have becen several judicianl opinions as to how to determiuc

buyer or by the buyer with the assent of the seller, the
property in the gocds thereupon passes to the buyer. Such
assent may he express or implied, and may be given cither
befere or after the appropriation is mades U

L4

whether there has been such on avyropriction as would be in the con~

templation of the parties and so »e in compliance with the statutory

formulation,

I necd only refer to two, the first of which is by

Lord Loreburn L,C. in Badische inikin Soda Fabric v. Hickson ZT90§7

AeCe 419 at p. 421:

4 contract to sell unascertained oods is not a complete
sale, but a promise to sell. There must be added to it
some act such as delivery or the appropriation of specific
goods to the contract by the assent cxpress or implied of
both buyer and scller. 8Such appropriation will convert
the executory agreement into a complete sale.

" fhat actually happens nced not invelve any
change either in the condition of the goods or in their
location. They were the proporty of the seller before the
appropriation; they becoms the property of the buyer as
soon as they are appropricted and thot is all. ™

Lgain in Carlos Federspiel & Coes Seie Ve Charles Twigp & Col. Ltd,.

.

1957/ 1 Lloydts Reports 240, at ppe 255 = 256, Pearson J. after o

caru:ful review of the relevant authorities diascoverced the following

AR\



principles:

" First, Rule 5 of sect 33 is ono of the rules for ascertainin:
the intention of the partics us to the time nt which the
property is to pass to ths Luyer 3 o diffoerent
intention appcars. Ther2fore, the clement of common
intention has always te bo borne in mind., 4 mere setting
apart or selection of ti seller of the pocds wuich he
expects te use in perfcrmance of the contract is not
encushe If thet is o1l he con chrnese his mind and use
those goods in porforwence of some other contract and use
some cther geods in performence of the contract. To
congtitute an approprintion of thu goods to the controct
the parties must have had, on intention to attach the
contract irrevocably to thosc goods, so that those jzoods
and no others are the subjecct of the =ale and become the
property of the buyer,

Secondly, it is by the agreement of the parties that the
appropriation, involving a change of ownership, is made
although in some coses the buyer's assent to an
oppropriation by the seller is conferred in advance by
the contract itself or otherwisc,.

Thirdly, an appropriation by the seller with the asseont
of the buyer may be soid always to invcelve an actual or
constructive delivery. If the seller retsins possession,
he dces so as bailee for the buyer, There is a passasge
Chalmerst Sale of Goods iAct, 12th ed at pe. 75 where it
3 saids

(=N
=

i

'In the second place, if the decisions be carcefully
examined it will be found that in every case where
the preperty has been hold to pess there has becn an
actual or constructive delivory of the poods to the
buycre"

"I think that is right, subject only to this possible
qualification, that there may bo aftecr such constructive
delivery an actual delivery still to e made by the seller
under the contract., Of course, that is quite possible,
because delivery is the transfer of pessession, whereas
appropriation transfers ownershipe So there may be first
an appropriation, constructive delivery, whereby the seller
becomes bLailee for the buyer, and then a subsequent actual
delivery involving actual possession, and when I say that
I have in mind in particular the two cases cited, namely,
Aldridge v. Johnson (1857) 7 © & & 885, and Langton v.
Higrins (1859) & H & N 402, -

Fourthly, one has to remember Scct 20 of the 3ale of
Goods fict whereby the ownership and the risk are
normnlly associoted. Therefore, as it appears that

there is recascn for thinking, on the construction of the
relevant documents, that the goods were, at all material
times, at the seller's risk, that is prima facie an
indication that the property had not pmssed to the buyer.

Fifthly, usually but not necessarily, the appropriating
act is the last zct to be performed by the seller, TFor
instance, if delivery is to be taken by the buyer at the
seller's premiscs and the seller has completed his part
of the¢ contract and has appropriated the goods when he
has made the goods ready and hns identified them and
placed them in o pogition to be taken by the buyer and

oY
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" has so informed the buyor, ond if the buyer agrees
to como and take them that is the assent to the
appropriction. But if there is o further act an
important and decisive act to be dons by the seller,
then there is prima facie cvidence that probably

the property dees not poss until the finsl act is donc,

On this scorc I cxtract the followins possapge which aprears in
Benjamints Sale of Goods (1974) para 362, page 176:

v plthough the goods have been sclcected and ddentified

by the seller, such acts as packing the geods labelling

them with the buyer'!s name informing the huyer that

they are ready for delivery, and c¢ven sending him an
invoice describing the particular poods sclected may

not, unless expreesly so ngreed, deterimine

irrevocably the clection of the seller so as to pass

the property by appropriation if the buyer has not
subseruently assented thercto. "

I haveto applytheseprinciples to the particular facts of

-

the instant case. I reiterate thoat the plaintiff had performed its
obligations and was ready and willing to tramsfer the property in
the goods = current parts - to the defendant. I hold that having

done all the things which the evidence shows were deone by

Mr. Tomlinson and Mr, Richardson on pehalf of the plaintiff in

pursuance of the centracty and having reccived from the agents of the

defendant severalenguiries for a sultable place for storage of the
parts, together with the promise thoat the defendant would take them
if Meotor Sales and Service did not, the nlaintiff Rad appropriated
these goods to the contract with the assent of the defendant. It

is my further finding that the defendant neglected or refused to

take delivery of those goods.

Consequently, I must consider what damages arce payable to

the plaintiff for the brcach of the contract in this case. First

of all, I must turn to assess the value of the goods. Mr, Heariques
submitted that I should award a reasonablce sum as the price of those

poodse He argued that seeing that the Imus fAssurance was a separate

contract from the fugust Agrecment, I should not be pguided as to
price by the formula of "nett landed cost™ in that agreement,
Rather, I should be guided by the terms of se 9 (2) of the Sale of

Goods ABF which provides that where the price is not stipulated in



the contract nor left to be determined in an agrecd manner or by the
course of dealing between the parties, the buyer must pay a reasonable
price., What is n reasonable price 1s a questicn of fact dependent

on the circumstances of ench particular casc.

On the other hand, the argument for the defendant as propoundoe?

by Mrs. Hudson-Phillips, was that consonant with the submission that
the Imus .ssurance becamc an express term  and integral part of the
August Agreement which was varied only to that extént, the proper
standard of assessment is at '"nett landed cost to the Distributor.”
The poods should be repurchased at that cost., I note in passing that
the fupust fLgreement does not definc the term '"nett landed cost,”
noer did Mra. Imus in his evidence imform me what was the defendant's
understanding of the term, .t the same time I will bear in mind the
assertion of Mr. Arthur that at the time ©f the Imus Assurance the
price which Robinson's expected to bhe paild was at nett landed cost
plus a factor coverins overhead costs. This expectation was made in
the light of his declaration that Mr., Imus had agreed that Robinson's
would suffer no loss.

In so far as the business of the plaintiff was concerned,
I have to take into account the fact that whatever parts the plaintiff
obtained were through the services of the confirming house of
Wilson and Gaviller. The confirming house obtains the parts for the
plaintiff and the suppliers - Rootes - look to them for payment.
Mr. Arthur explained that the Roeootes' invoices weould first have been
passed to Wilson and Gaviller, The invoices would bear the net f.o.b.
value, Wilson and Gaviller then accept the chrrges and include
them in their invoice to Robinson's. Also added zre the port rates
and wharfage commission of 2¥#, cost insurance =2pd freicht charges.
This then constitutes the ce.i.f. figure which appcears on the invoice

by

sent by Rootes to Robinson's, 1In his evidence andébis understanding,
Mre Arthur defined"nett landed cost to the Distributor'as the Feo.b.
costs, the cost of insurance, carriange freisht and duty, wharfage and

tax to which should be adied a commissicn of 5% payable to the
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confirming house for their part in the operaticn of experting the
parts from Enrland to Jomalcas The comuission paid to wilson and
Gavilier is a finaznciol charpe to Rebinsont's for the work they do
in undertaking the purchese of tho poods and for freicht insurance
and to arrange ultimate payment. He made it cuite clear that this
is not a cost of purchasinpg the parts but is an 22diticnal charge
which Roblnsont's has chosen to undertakes Tven so he considered
this charge to be included in the term "nett landed cost!" within the
terms of Clause 32(C) of the fugust Agrecment. Indeed, he added
two other pieces of information, firstly, that at the time of the
franchise Robinson's was makin; payment under ®,C,G.D. cover
(180 days financing) for which ¥Wilscen and Gaviller were responsible
to Robinson's. Sccondly, if Roebinson's bourht for cash they would
still include those charges, even the commission of 2)%, as the
administrative charges in the U,K, have to be paide.

As repards the actual commercicl situsntion in Jamalca: it
is permitted te a dealer to make o charsme of 2/% on the landed cost
which is to offset the cost of movement from the docks to the
distrihutor's premisces. Additionnally, Jamaica law 2llows the
distributor to ndd a markup of 100% on the purts which takes into
account the factor of obsolescence. Mre. Tcmlinsen knew this to be
so ever since he hns been in the motor trade. Incidentally, he

it is the practice that
snid thaqﬂwhen taking over a distributcrship or whex giving up a
distributorship, the motor vehicle parts are always bought or sold
at landed cost. This was whot he paid when he bought the parts from
Sprostense This was the value by which Txhibits 3 and 5 were
prepared.

Other terms gcoverning the dealings in parts were queried.
For instance, 'ccntrolledretail price,'"the actual sale price

including the markup of 100%; "'Dealer net price" first mentioned in

the latter date 8eptember 24, 1969, from the defendant to the

plaintiff and therein definasd as “the yrice appearing on the

supplier invoices applicable to your purchasce of the above vehicles

L
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and partse.”" The defendant sanid then that the parts would be repurchsso’
at "dealer net price' plus applicable ocean freight and insurance char
and applicable duties nnd dock-clearance,.' This imerican toerm
Mre Arthur would cquate with the Nett landed cost, only if it is
(;j assumed that the words'Hock clearance charpges refer to dock duty

charges at the London end and the Jamaice eond, also tharfage charpoes

at London nnd Jamaica,l"
It is not necessary for me to spend time at all in analysis
of these terms and others mentioned in the letter dated 7th October,
1969, being the reply by Mr. Re Ee Clarke on hehalf of the plaintiff
to the defendants lett:r of 24th September, 1969, Suffice it that
I have the acknowledgment of Mre. Imus that the distributor would
Q_f incur out of pocket expenses. The possibility of loss to the
plaintiff if there had been no Imus fssurasnce, and the plaintiff
continued to crder parts, was appreciated by Mr. Imuse. However, as
I have said before, his assurance was intended to cover the portion
of those costs that wers included in the nett landed cost, consequently,
the part of the nett landed cost not included would be a loss to the
plaintiff. Singularly, the letter of the Oth May, 1969, contained no
such gualification or reserwation and Mre. Imus! evidence did not inforn
<;» me of what in his view is to be dncluded in nett landed cost. It was

his evidence, nevertheless, that thc protection he wos

Robinsonts for ordering new vehicles and parts was that they would et

back from Chrysler the amount of money they had paid for ordering

new vehicles and current parts.

withough I have found that Mre Imus did not specifically

state that the plaintiff would suffer no loss, nevertheless, in all
(j\' the circumstances of the Imus Assurance I am satisfied that the

measure of damages flowing from the neglect or rcefusal of the

defendants to take the roods which had been appropriated to the

contract, is such as would cause the plaintiff to be compensated, not

only for the cost of the goods beine imported into Jamaica, but also

for loss of the income from the sale of those parts in the crdinary

996
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course of business., Robinson's dealership in Rootes manufactured

goods was progressing profitably. The nett lanled cost of the

goods ot the time of termination was put at 1066,812.22. To fthis

must be added the factor of coverhsad costs, which Mr. Arthur

9]

expected wculd have been added to the nett landed cost of the gool
at termination and acccrding te the terms of the Imus lssurance.
In my view this would prive = rensonable price for the roods as they
stood at terminatien,

This facter on the calculation Ly Mr. Arthur was 40%. He
did not give details of how he arrived at this percentage which is
at variance with the 50% markup that Mr. Clarke intimated to me was
proper in the circumstances. On this aspect of the case Mr, Clarke
stated that he did not do any markup on parts in 1968 or 1969.
However, as a rougsh rule of thumb he thought it safe to assume that

if the retail markup in an operation,which was more trade than reteil

9]
[

ales, 1is halved, the breakdown point is reached for ,scertaining
profit and loss. 4Applying this general principloe to Rebinson's case
he averped that the markup to break even proved to be over 60%. This
figure he stated had been improved during the two years previous to his
giving evidence. 8o that if one took the markup of 100%, allowed
for o discount of 25% to certain trade customers, which Jdiscount was
often the retail price - the price received frem a trader entitled to
such would be the equivalent of ~ 50% markup. I must say that on this
point T will be puilded by the percentage siven by Mr. Srthur, he having:
heen actually engaged in the day to day business of the plaintiff in
Jamaica. So that n reasona™le figure to ndd to the value of the parts
$86,812422 would be 334,724,868, This means that I find that a
reascnable value to put on the aforesaid goods 1s $121,537.10.

m . . .

lurnlng to the other items of special damages, I am
narticulcrly mindful of the arguments which Mrs. Hudson-Phillips

me

pressed uponé:mn;uﬂing the proper approach to the assessment.

Before dealing in detail with those arpguments it is convenient at

this stage to recall that the plaintiff Jdid not proceed with the
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indeterminate and amorphous cilailim for"General Surervision and
Miscellanecus.'" T record olso the mutual agreement thnt two claimgs
upron the insurance company for goods which were stolen should be

dedacted from whatever damages mizght be awariced, Those sums are

~~
]
N~

$925,00, the claim For which was settled; (k) 510,814.52, which
but
wos atill ocutstanding at the time of trialﬁin respect of which the

U

assessors have reccmmended that the insurers pay a lesser sume. The
total of this deduction is $11,739.52.
It was zgreed that, saving the question of liability the

following amocunts were cxpended by the plaintiff:

(i} Insurance premiums L, ., oae ﬁlhr29§.2?
(ii) Packing ~nd Labour eses o § 3,200.,00
(1iii) 101 Crates at $20C per crate .. 4 2,020.,00
(iv) Forklift nand Lorry hire weo 5 24000,00
(v) Storace cree ces 5 6,480.00

It was argued that the defendant should not be called upon
to reimburse the plaintiff for these expenditure since cnce it is
found that the property in the goods passed to the defendant the risk
fell on them, and thercfore therce was no necessity for the plaintiff
to spend those amounts; so all those c¢cxpenditures should be borne by
the plaintiff,

To maintain this argument is to ignocre the terms of s. 37
of the Sale of Geoods sict which emphasisss a right of the seller who
is ready and willing to deliver the goods. The words of the
section are:

" fhen the seller is ready and willing to deliver the

poods ond requests the buyer to take delivery, ond

the buyer does not within a reasonable time after such

request take delivery of the woo&s, he is 1liable to the
seller for any loss occasioned by his neglect or

refusal to toke delivery, and alsc for a reasonable
charge to take care and custody of the poodse "

To explain the effect of this section, I can do nc better

than to quote the following succinct commentary from Schmittoff:

>XU



"The Sale of Goods" (2nd. eds) =t pages 189 - 190:

"Section 37 /of the Sole of Goods hct 18937 applies
where the property in the geods has passcd to the
buyer ( ss 17 = 19), but he fzils to take

Golivery ile.ee. posseesion of them (s 62). In these

cages the sceller's princinal remedy is on oetion for

the price (s 49); scction 37 allows him twe additicna
claims, viz

(1) in damnges for any less occasioned by the
buyer's failure to toke delivery of his property;

and

(2) for reasonable charges for the care and
custody of the buyer's property. "

1

He contrasts that situation with that in which the property

has not been transferred to the huyen in which event the seller's

principal remedy is an action for damages for non-acceptance, 5.50;

loss occasioned by the buyer's failure to take possession of the

goods may be included into the calculation of damagds. The same

»)

applies where the seller sues for damages for nonacceptance as an

alternative for the price (sce also BenjJamin's Sale of Goods -
1974 raraa. 1243, Pe 607)0

I should point out the scectiomsof the Jamaica Szale of

Goods uct which correspond tc sections 49 and 50 of the Sele of

are

Goods fAct 1893. They/respectively, s. 45 and 49. TUnder s, 49 the

measure of damages for nonacceptance is the estimated loss directly

and naturally resulting in the ordinary coursce of events from th

huyerts breach of contracte The agreed amounts are recoverable.

e

When I gave oral judgment in May 1980, it was on the basis
153 b ]

of these agreed figuress I did not then and I Jdo not now have any

definitive figures of expenditures up toc the date of julgment.

Mayhbe

the parties will consider this aspect of the matter and let me know

in due course what figures are finally apreed.

It will be recalled that in Carlos Federspiel & Cc. Sele Ve

Charles Twigg & Co. Ltd, Pearson J. describod the seller in poss

a8 a bailece for the buyer. Benjamints Sale of Goods 1974 in =

¢

S8 LN

ig s1 < < a I ) .S U Se 20 of che oale © ods A
discussion of the second proviso to g. 20 of the Sale of Qoods hAct

1893 (s. 21, Sales of Goods Lot (Jamaica)), expresses the gollowing

opinion in paragraph 417, pase 197:
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UIf the property has passced to the buyer under the
contract of sele, but the seller remains in
possessiocn of the peods, it approers that he does
so as bailee for rewsrd, until the time for delivery
has arrvived, Not withstending that the geeds are at
the buyer's risk, the sceller must take recsonable
crre of the seods nccerdine toe the circumstances of
the particulaor cose. U

That learned vork further says ot noara. B16 p. 198 -

W oafter the time for delivery | arrived, the Jdutles
of the seller as hnllee of tho soods is uncertain,
Wwhore the delay in delivery is due to the fault of the
buyer the sellor might be held to Le either nn
inveluntary or pratuitous brilce. If he is an
involuntary bailce then it would appear that he will be
liable cnly for delibercte injury tc the goods or fer
gross negligence but not for ordinary negligence, If
he is 2 gratuitous bailee, he will probhably be under
a duty to take recsunable core of the goods l.e. to
treat them as a man of ordinary orudence would treat
his own pgoocils. Where so 27 of the act applics, he
will be an involuntary baileo, otherwise it is
submitted he is @ pratuitous bailee, The position
would then be an follows: (1) if the risk has passed
to the buyer, and delay is due to the fault of the
buyer the scller is still under o duty te take
reasonnble care of the goods; and (ii) if the risk
remains with the seller, but delay in delivery is
due to the fault of the buyer, the buyer must assume
the risk of zny loss which might not have occurred,
but for such fault, yet thoe geller must gtill tnke
reasonable care of the suods Further, if the risk
h=zs passed to the buysr, but delivery is delayed due
to the seller's fault, the seller must assume the risk
any loss which might not heve occurred but for such
fault, and in additicn must t-kc reasonable care of
the pocdse M

I would have thought thercefore that it was perfectly
proper in all the circumstances of this particular case for the
plaintiff{ to have taken the stews he did in insuring the goods and

providing for their secure storage, as well as packaging,
cencommittant with which was the inescepeablc hiring of forklift and
Labour.

As bailec of the goods of the Jdefendant in the particul r
circumstances of this case, I find that it was reesonable for the
plaintiff to employ such services as would economically meet the
requisites of seccure protection for the soods the subject matter of
this action, from the year 1969. is rcoards what sum should be
awarded for the cngapement of the services of wotchmen, I have to

bear in mind the evidence of Mre fichardscn in which he set out how

o
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the
he arrived at the figure claimed by/pleaintiff under that head of
special damnpes. T was told that thoe Dootes'! ponds were stored in

the same building as othor goods Lelenqing to the plaintiff.

In more detail, Mr., Hdichardson said thoat for the period
1969 ~ 72, the goods of the plaintiff were stored at throe locations
at a total cost of 540,368,31., 0Of this amount $15,138.12 was allocer bul
for steorage at the South Camp Noad site, one of three locations befora-
menticned, For the period November 1972 to November 1978, the total
sum incurred for storage at the South Camp Road premises alone was
5h9,751.32, The value of the stock over the nine yesr period was
"348,0003 included in this total value of assets was the value of the
sparcs at landed cost which was 366,812,00, This last figure was
expressed ac 25% of the base of the 348,000,000 stock. The formuln
therefore resulted in using the 25% to ascertain how much of the
total cost of 164,089.,14 over the nine year period could be appropriatc’
to the services of the watchmen,

Mre Richardson, did nadmit thot noturally the watchmen
were not engaged in watching the Icotes zoods only, but in fact
included other goods and the entire premiscs where the neods were
storeds. He also admitted thot his computaticn would have been
consilderably reduced hzd he taken into account the value of the premises
at South Camp Road and the structures thereon. The value of thosc

sn )

structures was §

0,000.00, taking intoe account the expenditure by
the plaintiff of a new structure at a cost of 520,000,00,

Although Mre. Richardscn's formula was dissected under cross-
examinationm and he conceded its defects, vig, that he 1id not toke
into account the value of the structures, I do nct wish toe be tied
down to the circumlocution of what the watchmaon wes really watching.
It is clear that no alternative formula was suggested either by the
plaintiff or by the defendant, by which I could be guideds In the
cvent, Jdoing the best I can, I will make usc of Mre Richardson's

formula with the added fipure of the voalue of the structures which

enables me to use a percentage o©f 20% o1 shock te base figure.
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This therefore will make the award for this item of speclal damnzzs
to be $12,997.52.

Tahulated the domages will he as follows:

Price of Spare Parts 186,812.22
204 bhO% for overheads 34,724,388
$I;1s537o10
Less claims on insurance company for
losses 3 11,740,03
$109,797.07
Insurapce Premium 5 14,293,27
Packing and Labour 3%,200,00
101 Crates at $20 per crate 2,020,00
Forklift and Lorry hire 2,000,00
Storage 6,480,00
Watchmen and security service 12,997.82
Asagreed at the trial I award $150,786416
interest at 10% from the date of the breach in 135,690,112
1969, $286,458,28

There will be judpment for the plaintiff in the sum of

286,458,28, with costs to be agreed or taxed.

On the 30th March, 1981, the lecrned attorneys-at-law for
the parties informed me that in so far as the quantum of damages and
interest were concerned, they had agreed to add #%,000,00 to bring
the sums for the items of insurance, storage and wabtchmen up~to-date
of the judgment. This would therefore increase the damages to
515%,738,.16.,

The interest on that sum was calculated as follows:

(1) on the sum of #109,707,07

(a) 10% for 11% years = 4126,266,63
(b) on the sum of 40,999.09 at 10% for 5% years

- 4 23,569.87

Total $303,624,66

J.a9
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The figures so agreed are without prejudice, to further
argunents re¢ the liability of the defendant,
Thurg will thercfore Dbe judgment for the plaintiff for
the sum of 4303,624.66, This is in Substitution of the judgment
and announced on the 16th May, 1960. The plaintifi will have the

costs of the action,

g9



—

PpPe 934 letter

printed conditions contaiping the exemption clause,

Observing that nbthing wos put into writing about the
poods being carriced under, deck, Lord Denning, M,R. upined that
Utﬁere was o plain bronch:of the cral promise by the forwording
azentse' On the facts ¢f the case he gaid V..., we are concerned
with an assuronce as to the futures" He underlined the approach
of the Courts -

M o aeees nowadays:to collateral contracts. Vhen a
person zives a bromisce or an assurance to another
intcnding that he should act on it by entering
into n contracﬁ, we hold thet it is bindirg. See
Dick Bentley Productions Ltd, v, Harold Smith
(Motors) Ltde /19657 L ¥.L.R. b23. That case was
concerned With réprescutation of fact, but it
applics also to promises as to the futurc. ™
(pe 93% letters d - ¢)

Roskill ond Geoffery Lane, L.JJ. agreed that the appeal
should be allowed for the reasons given by Lerd Denuing, M.2. At
j = 935 letter a, Roskill, L.J. expressced his views
in thcse words:

" Tt scems to me as 1t scems to Lord Denning, M.R.
absolutely plain that the plaintiffs thousght that
they had sot an assurance from the defendants if
the plaintiffs instend of using the trailers which
had hitherto always been shipped under deck, were
to allow the defendants to ship the plaintiffs!
goods in containers, those containcrs, like the
trailer before them, would be shipped under deck.
The learncd judge said that all the defendants
zave was an assurance, they did not pgive a
guarantees The real gquestion as I venture to think,
is not whether one calls this an assurance or a
guarantee, but whoether¥ that which was said amounted
to an enforceable contractual promise by the
defendants to the plaintiffs that any poods, there-
after entrusted by the plaintiffs to the defendants
for carriage from Milan to the United Kingdom via
Rotterdam and then by sea to Bngland, would be
shipped under deck, The matter was apparcently
argued before the learned judge on behalf of the
plaintiffs on the basis that the defendants!
promnise (if any) was what the lawyers sometimes
call o collateral cral warrantye. That phrase is
normally only applicable where the original promise
was external to the main contract, the main
contract being n contract in writing so that
usually parol evidence cannot be given to contredict
the terms of thi written contract. The basic raie
is clearly stated in the latest edition of Benjamin
on Sale (9th odﬁtion 1974, para 742) to which T

refer but will not repcate.

But that doctrine, as

it seems to me has no application where one is not
concerned with o contract in writing (with respect,




